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Page 7, Ccl. 1, ‘
Col, 1, line 18 from bottom, :
for "tremen ous" read "tremendous"
Page 8,
Col. 2, line 8
for "thinking over it Sir, I would"
Tead "points about the functions of the"
Page 12, |
Col, 1, line 4 .
for "foun ies" read "foundries"
Page 16, ,
Col, 2, line 33, for "cooting" reed tcoating"
Page 26,
Col., 2, line 12, -
for "upstreom" read"ﬂﬂpefraam"{ e
Page 29,
Col. 1, line 7, from bottom
{i) for ‘"Export" read "Expert"
(11) Col. 2, line 3,
) for "non-environmental list"®
read "non-environmentalists"
(iii) Col. 2, line 15 from bottom
for "TECNESCC' read “TECNECO®
Page 33,.
Col. 1, line 3, for "proptry" read "property"
Page. 37,
oy S55 e v .
i) line or "Dr. SNDERESAN" ‘read "DR. SUNDARESAN'
(ii) line 4 from bottom omit "the"
(iii) Col., 2, line 17 from bottom
for "procdure" read ‘“procedure"
Page 38,
Col., 1,
(i) line 12, for "Sam ing" read "Sampling"

(11)
for

Col, 2, line 20 from bottom

"sufficent" read "sufficient"
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Page 40, -
Col, 2, line 18-19
for naczquintance" read "acequaintance"
Page 42,

Col, 1, line 13 from bottom
(i; for "Btu" read "But"

Col. 2, line 14, for "givin" read "giving"
Page 43,
(i) Col. 1, line 13,
for "Ater" read "After"
(ii) CTol. 2, line B from bottom
for "contral" read "control"
Page 55,
(i) Col, 2, line 1ll1l,from bottom,
for "Memer" read "Member"
(ii) Col, 2, line 23,
for “PETROLEUM MINISTRY" read " AN HON. MEMBER".

Page 57,
Col. 2, line 15 from bottom 1
for "Bills" read "Bill" '
Page 62,

Cnl., 2, line 2 from bottom,
omit "the" ’
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Prof. J. M. Dave, Head of the De-
partment, School of Environmental
‘Studies, Jawaharla] Nehru Univer-
.sity, New Delhi.

(The witness was called in and he
‘took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Prof. Dave, I
wekome you to this meeting of our
Committee. At the outset, I have to
make one thing clear. In accordance
with the provisions containeg in Di-
rection 58 of the Directiong of the
Speaker under the Rules of Proce-.
dure and Conduct of Business, your
evidence will be treated as public
and is liable to be published, unless
you desire that all or ary part of the
evidence given by you should be
treated as confidential. Even the

confidentiah part of the evidence will
have to be made available to the
Member; of Parliament it they so
desire. Mr, Dave, you head the
School of Environmental Studies in
the JNU., You have given us a memo-
randum earlier. You have now given
ug a revised memorandum. Would
you like to make a statement with
regard to this?

PROF. DAVE: Thank you, Sir,
very much. It ig my privilege to be
invited by this august body. I will
try my best to share whatever expe-
rience I have gained during the last
26 years in the field of environment,
particularly in air pollution in India
and abroad, both at national and in-
ternational levels. It will be my
humble contribution, if I can be of



any gpecial assistance to this Com-
mittee. With these opening remarks,
1 would like to touch, if you permit
me, upon the highlights of this
memorandum—instead of reading it.
I will present the salient points,

The first and foremost point I had
earlier raised in memorandum, and
which I would like to raise again in
this meeting to-day, is about the func-
tioning and the composition of the
Board. The Bill proposeg that there
should be a single Board ie, the
Water Pollution Board, and this
existing Board should be assigned
the function under this Billh. Expe-
rience in the last 4 or § yearg has
shown that there are definitely some
major lacuna in the functioning of
the Board,

Thig Board was formulated on the
basig of a Bill—with the hearing re-
lating to which I was associated in
1971-72—and it wag based on the
old, traditional management systems.
1 believe that g new Board will be
more effective. I have already given
various reasons also here, e.g. the
areas of operation of air anq water
pollution are quite different. Air
doeg not recognize any boundary, but
water ig confined only to river basins;
and you cap control jit. Air pollu-
tion does not recognize political or
geographical borders. In a vast coun-
try like India, it can travel over vast
areas. In the case of water, you can
treat it and purify it in a limited
quantity, for human consumption; but
you canmot purify air. Secondly, we
had g lot of discussion in Bangkok
on such legislations in developing
countries and the working of the
various boards in the world was
studied. It was thought that the
modern management practiceg ghould
be brought into play in the formation
of these boards. We should have a
more efficient board, should have an
executive Secretary with all the
powerg and the policy decisiong laid
dowp, by higher bodies rather than a
type of board that we have been
having traditionally. Most of the

Water Pollution Boardg were formed
on the basig of the British Act of 1820
and 1922. I think, it ig high time that
we should take advuntage of ihe de-
velopment in management particu-
larly in the envirpnmental area and
have a more compast and effective
boards,

This Bill provideg for the Central
Board for Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution to exercise all the
powers under this Bill with regard to
air pollution control. My experience
is that it will be fcund from the
report itself also that i g few States,
there is nothing, no board. but a Sec-
retary, a clerk and a peon I can
quote the nameg of the Stateg if ycu
so desire. The industries merrily go
about poluting the system. Such a
thing has to be avoided. I was a
party to the prepacation of the draft
Ajr Pollution Act as a Secretary of the
national Committee. At that time,
we did not have the experience of
the Water Pollution Control Board and
we had erroneously had the same tra-
ditiona] format of the board. Now, we
feel that we must have a completely
different kind of Board. It should
be compact clothed with executive
powerg and should be designed to be
functional, effective and economical.
I have studied the function and the
experience of such Boardg in Sweden,
Singapore etc. They had a detailed
re-analysis of the functioning of the
Boards and they have come to the
conclusion that it would be more
effective to have a small gnd compact
Board with a definitely laid down
policy from above. Their function-
ing would be more of an executive
nature. The policy making Board in
Sweden is headed by the Minister of
Environments.

Thig Bil} says that the present
Board for Water Pollution will take
over functions for air pollution con-
trol also. That means, the present
set up will continue. We would have
no room for improvement and learn=-
ing from the experience of the earlier
Boards.



MR. CHAIRMAN: Thig ig a very
critical point. The scheme of the
present Bill i that the Water Pollu-
tion Boards will take over the work
of air pollution control also, and if I
am correct, the amendment that th'e
Parliament passed to thig Act speci-
fically provides for this. Is it open
to ug to make a recommendation
that there should be 5 separate
Board for this? I am told, we can.

Now, when you talk of their ex-
perience in Sweden, and other coun-
tries, do they have a separate Board
.for this?

PROF, DAVE: In Sweden there
i8 one environmental board and they
haye two executive directors, one for
water and the othar for air pollu-
tion. In Singapore, there are two
separate boards.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Why not have
a single environmental board with
two separate wings? Why doeg this
not meet with your approval? As an
environmentalist, you should welcome
integration, but you seem to be
arguing for a bifurcation,

PROF. DAVE: 1 had advocated
way back in 1974 for a gingle envi-
ronmental board. Here, we are not
creating a8 new organization for air
pollution control; we are handing
over these functiong to the other
board constituted in 1974. The Wafer
Pollution Board functioning with all
its lacunae and shortcomings will be
superimposed on this,

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Water Pol-
lution Act has been passed under a
different Article of the Constitution
and the Air Pollution Bill is under
a different clause. There are certain
problems connectedq with that flow-
ing from the federal natwre of the
Indian polity,

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: The
Chairman of the Board hag to be
appointed and he should be a person
who knows gomathing about the gub-
Ject. If the Chairman of the Board

undey thie Water Pollution Act has
to act ag Chairman of the Air Pollu-
tion Board, he may not know any-
thing about the subject of air polu-~
tion.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: As Minis-
ter iacharge at that time in Maha-
rashtra, I wag one of the first per-
song to have the Water Pollution Act
enacted there. Mr, Dave is right
when he sayg that there is no teeth
in that Act in the sense that the mea-
sures—not only the preventive mea-
sures, but punitive measures also—
are extremely ineffective. The pub-
lic sector undertakings—and Bombay
is- full of them—just do not bother
at all. We could not take any action
against them. The powers of the
State Government ia this respect be-
ing limited what Mr. Dave is gaying
ig that if you want the Air Pollution
Bill' to be really effective, we have
to consider seriously whether we
should entrust thi; work to the:
Water Pollution Boards which guffer
from these infirmities.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Under your
scheme, a separate Board ig asked
for. How would you obtain liaison
with the Water Pollution Board? I
say this because coordination is one
of the weakest linkg in the Govern-
ment of India. Even within the same
Ministry, there is a problem. In the
case of Mathura refinery, assuming
that it is ever built, air will be going
above, into the space and water will
be coming down. How do you get
this differentiation, viz, that the liquid
effluents would be under a separate
agency, gnd within 20 metres above
you, the air will be under another
agency?

"PROF. DAVE: There are two
issues. Your question, Sir. One is cor-
relation between the two agencies.
and the other is the technical aspect
of pollution. I will reply to the tech-
nical aspect first. The realm of water
and air pollution are quite differen
technically as I explained in the begin-
ning. There may be some industries
which may have both air pollution. and



water pollution, e.g. in refineries but
other industries like the nitrie acid
plant and the formulation of {artilizers
and sulphuric acid manufacture, there
are air effluents only and there is no
water po'iution at all. They may have
to be dealt with by both the Board,
or may not have it sometimes.

The secoad aspect ig &oout coordi-
nation. In principle, I agree that
there should be g common  well-
organized agency ag is done in many
countries. But in our cowatry, the
problem is that the Board for water
pollution has already been formed
and it has certain built-in lacunae, I
am afraid they will be transferred
here to new hoards as we have no way
of amanding these lacunae as it was
enacted under Article 252 of the
Constitvtion. We cannot change the
compcsition of the Board to-day under
the Water Pollution Act. Here is an
opportunity to form a more modern,
efficient management gystem to tack)2
air pollution, which will be more
compact, economical and functional.
Why should we not build on our past
experience?

SHRI R, K. MHALGI" Lo you en-
visage membership for non-officials
in the Board?

PROF. DAVE: Yes. Insteai of
having a 17-member Board, there
should be only 10 members—y wel)
represented compact body and an
executive c2cretary as with new mae-
nagemen* techniques. This has heen
discussed at national and internatjona!
levels. Why do you have 5 represen-
tatives nominated by (Government?
We can have representativeg from
public industry, power plants, wild
life, forest, agriculture, ete. TChere
should be a new pattern suggested, by
this august body as {0 how the new
board should be functional one with
executive secretary for hetter efil-
ciency.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Why should we not change
the composition of the Water Pollution
Board, as it was originally stipulated,
in view of the newer responsibilities
entrusted on it?

PROF. DAVE: I am not fully iware:
of the legal comnlicati~ng for chang-
ing it. May. be tne Lok Saoha Sccre-
tariat can tell us. If there js room for
improcvement. I am not sure. 1 thunk
it was passed under Article 252 of the-
Constitution and the consent of the
States has to be obtained for amcnd-
ment. I think it may not be easy.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTACH-
ARJEE: Even'though air Pollution is-
not ccnfined within gsegraphical hmits
a particular state will have to con-
fine its activties within a geographi-
cal limit. i

PROF. DAVE: 1 will deal with thi
separately in other suggestiony made
late in my memorandum.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: We are
now dealing with a Bill which is
confined to air pollution. In this
B'll we cannot do anything else. even
if we want to, ie, about Water
pollution Act because they are the
State Acts, So, let ug not carry our
de’iberations into the area of water
pollution, relevant though it may be.
While making general observations,
Wwe can consider the coordination ag-
pect. It is logical then, to my mind,
to agree with Dr. Dave that there
must be a separate Board for air
pollution, It has its own technical
aspects ac he hag explained, and also
an administrative aspect.

On thig Air Polltion Board, Dr.
Dave has talked of representation fer
agriculture, industry and other:. But
the main partieg concerned with air
pollution are the people who are aff-
ected, What representation does he
visualize for them? I find a mention
in the memorandum gbout municipa-
lities and about the actual notifica-
tion being made in advance seeking
their objectiong etc, Will it not,
therefore, be necessary to have on
this Board, e.g. people representing or
looking aftey various monuments in
the country like the Archaeological
Survey of India and others. a5 well
ag municipalities and corporations?:



I think they should have a major
voice in all these matters,  because
there is a tendency on the part of
industries to dominate the thinking
and try to play down the effect of
pollution, particularly in the field of
air pollution because it cannot be
detected easily and immediately by
the commopn man. It ig g matter for
experts. And a new modern exper-
tise is developing. In India, there is
very little awareness of this, Uiless
we educate the municipal bodiqs
about this, I am afraid the composi-
tion of the Board will be go overload-
ed in favour of industries that in
effect, the air pollution problem will
get not only complicated  but also
defused, What are Dr, Dave's views
on this?

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: We are talking about com-
position. One of the very important
aspects of air pollution which, I
think, people do not concerp them-
selves gufficiently with is that in the
highly industrialized and urban areas
air pollution is therefrom the exhausi
fumeg of transport vehicles, To en-
sure that a standard is maintained in
this regard, and that it is controlled.
Police have a role to play. After all,
when these vehicles are seen emit-
ting a lot of gas, it is the responsi-
bility of the transport authorities and
the Police. Don’t you think that the
Board should have some representa-
tion from them also? After all in-
dustries gre in particular areas, but
ag far g5 gas from transport is con-
cerned, it is there in every lane of the
country, and it affects the health of
the people tremendously, particularly
in our country where we find that
due to shortage of vehicles, many
old and condemned vehicles are put
on road, somehow or the other. Air
pollution by these vehicles ig quite
considerable,

PROF. DAVE: Mr. Sathe has rais-
ed a very valid point. I totally
agree with him, I would like to

draw the attention of the Com-
mittee to the first report submitted
by the National Committee of ex-
pertg which drafted the Bil) in 1972
and of which I wa: the secretary.
We had, in it, qualified medical per-
sonnel, meteorological people and emi-
nent civic leader; from the munici-
palities and corporations and officers
dealing with automobile licensing.

1 agree with Madam tha! in India
air pollution from automobiles is a
very important factor. More than 90
per cent of the vehicles in the cities,
according to my survey, were niore
than 10 years old. New vehicles form
8 per cent or 10 per cent of the moving
vehicles. The pollution rate ig gs high
as 156 times that of the normally per-
mitted rate in Europe. Maintenance
ig poor. Vehicleg are over-loaded.
when I was in the Government of
India, I tried to reduce the exhaust
fumes in DTC buses. I agree there
should be representation for munici-
pal authorities.

MR, CHAIRMAN: You saig you
wanted a compact Board. On the
other hand, you agree with the hon.
Memberg that all these interests
should be represented.

PROF. DAVE: 1 am for including
the representatives of these people.
At first that Board had only 11 mem-
bers, including these people. In the
new composition, 5 representatives
were nominated by Government. Why
should there be such nomination with-
out identifying them.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: The
basic scheme of the Bill is that the
work of air pollutio iz to be en-
trusted to the Board. I find that the
Chairman of the Water Pollution
Board is a full time Chairman. He
is a person who i having special
knowledge and practical experience
in these things. The same words
have been borrowed here,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thig has amend-
ed in the last amendment



SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: That per-
son hag to be experienced both in
problemg connected with water pol-
lution and air pollution. My expe-
rience is that the municipal autho-
rity is an executive body. My sub-
mission is that if the Board ig to be
an effective body, it must have more
executive powerg than the delibera-
tively body.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It ig a delibe-
Tative body-cum-executive body.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: How can
these part-time members function if
they meet once in three months? I
would go g step further and gay that
this body ig to be a technical body.

SHRI B. P, KADAM: Is it ‘not
necessary to have an effective com-
mittee at the district level? I sug-
gest that there should be 5 local
committee under the District Magis-
‘trate,

MR. CHAIRMAN: To implement
the provisions of the Bill?

SHRI B, P. KADAM: Whep the
local people go to coatact the Board
officers here and there, the things are
delayed. What has happened in Goa
about the fertilizer plant where the
water pollution is so much? It is
difficult to contact the officialg at the
State level because the industries put
a tremen lous pressure on them and
try to influence them with the result
that delayg take place. Would it not
be worthwhile to have a District
Magistrate ag its head? The com-
mittee would be represented by the
taluk board, panchayat as well as
municipality, becauge ultimately the
peoples’ voice has to be given impor-
tance; and they have to be helped in
every way,

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: Ag far as
the composition of the Board ig con-
cerned, it is really a technical matter.

From my experience I find that these-

industrialists are able to exert a lot
of pressure and there are representa-
tives who are not directly responsible

to the Government; and against whom
for doing certain things, you cannot
take any action. Therefore, we
should have on the Board only such
members ggainst whom you can take
action for doing certain thingg which
are not proper.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are two
points involved. One is about the ma-
jor agencie; which are responsible
for the implementation of the Act;
whether they should be represented
or not. The other point ig about the
municipalities and corporations. If
we do it, then there is a danger of
the whole being diluted also to some
extent. Then it becomes a larger
body. Is it possible to envisage a
compact technical operative board as
the implementing agencyv and then
perhaps either at the district leve) or
divisional level or other level have
a sort of advisory group of the con-
sumerg and the people who can
serve, if necessary. You do not con-
fuse the two things. Is it possible to
find out some such structure where
you have a small operative body of
the advisory citizens group?

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Mv point
is that the Board which ig going to
have the power of implementing the
provisions must not have a_dominant
hand.

MR, CHAIRMAN:
well taken.

That point is

SHRI VASANT SATHE: There
should be independent technical ex-

perts,

MR. CHAIRMAN: There must be
some mechanism, some modality
whereby the people whg are aggriev-
ed are able to feed in their com-
plaints.

PROF, DAVE: There is a mecha-
nicism by which thig kind of input
could be arranged. Before the Board
gives any decision or permission for
any particular industrial emission—it
it is concerning the population of that
residentia] area--there is a possible



procedure by which it can be provided
in a ciause that the Bouard wil) hold
a public hearing.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do we have a
clause holding public hearing? That
is a very useful point,

PROF. DAVE: No Sir, as ] feel it
might also cause delay in the execu-
tion.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Shri Sathe has
rightly said polluters may also have
a say.

PROF  DAVE: About the full time
or part time Ghairinan of the Buvards
1 strongly favour ful] time Chairinan,
To quote present experience of water
pollution boards, I may say tha! there
are four or five Boards which have
full time Chairman have worked well,
For example it is in Gujarat,
Madhya Pradesh and other places.
We have also some Boards with part
time Chairman, but it has never fun.-
tioned. U P. Secretary used to tell me

that he would not see Chairmen fot
three months. Many times Goavern.
ment officers are very busy. They

have no time at al] to take any interest
ip the activities,

MR. CHAIRMAN:  Assuming that
we are going to have separate Boards,
should it be separate for each State?

PROF. DAVE: Yes Sir, as it was
formu'ated originally, it envisaged
two sets of Boards in each State with
two Centra] Board, but I think this
draft is not based on it that is why
now it jg formed like this.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Will hon. mem-
bers decide to have separate Boards?
Are we envisaging a gingle Central
Board or will we have Board for
every State?

We were linking it with Water
Pollution. That is why we are think.
ing of State Boards,

That wag under 252. This is under
253,

PROF. DAVE: Honestly speaking
I have not given deep thoughi to this
issue. The Centraj Bouard might be
funciional and I think it will be more
advantageous. But Jet rae say it needs
some thinking over it. Sir I would
a:so like to submit that I have given
some thinkiag over it. Sir, I would
Board in the draft Bill. First is that
the Boards should have the power to
prepare schedule of the industry and
lay down the standards of emission
for them,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Why is it elimi-
nated from the draft?

PROF. DAVE: I am not surz why
Sir, but it js necessary. Supposing a
Power Plant is to be located in the.
Stl#te, which does not have Air pollu.
tion Board. If the Central Board has
laid down certain standards, thwse
wlil be binding on thern.

MR, CHAIRMAN: In page 2 of your
Memorandum, you say that there are
very few trained and capable people.
If you are going to have in each
Stute full time Chairman, will we be
able to get 30 Chairmen?

There are not very many people
even in the advanced countries who
are capable of doing this.

PROF. DAVE; There are very few
peopie available today, that is why 1
recommend functional Boardg also we
have started the gchool so that I can
train pecple.

Anothey point to make is emission
from the industrial plant. I dc not
think that the Government would
change the schedule. Why not give
power to the Board as it is done in
many other countries of the world?
Which industries are polluting and
which are not polluting, it is a techni-
cal matter to be proved. Why shouid
these decisions powers not be given to
the Board and be reserved with the
Government who will respect board
opinion any way?

MR. CHAIRMAN:; Government can
be suitably represented on the Bosrd.



LAW MINISTRY REPRESENTA.
TIVE: Lieences in the State are
..oe:i by the State authority. The
Central Government cannot do in this
matter, Such of the industries which
are under the Central Government,
the Central Government can delegate
this power to the Board.

'SHRI ' VASANT SATHE: If you
have a Central authority and if by a
Central Law there is a condition that
any licence to be given to gny indus-
try either by the Central authority
or by the State will mean ‘no objec-
tion certificate’ from the Air Pollu-
tion authority or the Board, then that
will apply only to the State as it
will apply to the Centre while grant-
ing the licence or regulating the
industry,

PROF. DAVE: There is a lot of
force in saying that we should have
a central authority, but unless we get
the cooveration of the State Govern-
ments, ful] implementation is not pos-
sible.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: If you
locate the Central Board in Delhi, you
should have a very mobile Chairman
who is not fond of sitting in Delhi
all the time because action has to be
taken promptly.

PROF, DAVE: Probably my view.
point hag not been properly under-
stood. The industries have to be
clasi;ified. We do not have the man-
power to take care of all the indus-
tries. So, we would like to take
action on the most toxic and dange-
rous industries first. So, the board
must issue a list of industries and
say that these are the most toxic
industries and they need action first.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Suppose
you classify certain industries as
polluting industries, The pollution
caused by a particular unit may be
negligible by itself, but if there are
a cluster of such small units together,
the effect of pollution will be sub-
stantial. A particular unit may say,

‘The gases that come out from my
industry are negligible and therefore,
a no objection certificate should be
given.” So, you may give a licence
to that. Like that hundreds of units
may get the licence each indepen.
dently. '

PROF DAVE: That is g valid point,
Air quality standards have to be laid
down for each region and if the
standard goes below that level, the
board will have authority not to allow
any more industries in that region.

My next point is the authority by
the Central Government to create
inter-state air pollution zones. This
was earlier raisad by honourable
member. India is a federal coudatry.
Dalhi is a typical example whare air
pollution does not recugnise any boun-
dary. It travels along with the wind
a hundred miles this wey or that way.
So, it may be necsssary to create inter-
State air pollution zones as is done
in Australia, USA, West Germany,
etc. In Delhi you have a concentra-
tion of industries from Rohtak to
Ghaziabad and Faridabad and if you
take action within the boundary of
Delhi, you will not gucceed. So, the
board should have authority to create
inter-State air ool!lution zones for
effective action.

My next point is, consent of muni-
cipalities should be obtained. There
is a provision like that in many Euro-
pean countries in hillippines and
Malaysia. The reason, i3, you may
issue cne set of staudards, but the
municipality may fee} il is not enough
and a stricter standard should be en-
farced.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I thought it may
be the other way round. The muni-
cipalities may want to attract indus.
tries and therefore may inisist on less
rigid standards.

PROF. DAVE: That can also be
true Sir, in such situat'on in countries
like Belgium and Germany, there is a
provision to invite ohjections from
lo~a] residents whose houses may be
located within a 50 metre radiug of



the proposed site of the factory. Such
a provision may also be considered.
This may counter act such a municipal
action,

Lastly, this Bill js named Air Pol-
lution (Prevention and Control) Bill
but I 4o not think any power or any
mechanism is provided in the Bill
for the board to take preventive
action. In Europe and America the
boards have a say in the land use
Plan from the beginnirg so far as lo-
cation of industries 1s coucernec.
For example, Delhi iz having an in-
dustrial estate and north westerly
winds are minimum jn winter months.
In that case, it can be laid down that
in certain areas no industries should
be allowed to come up. This is cal-
led preventive action.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Regarding laying down of
standards, there has been a debate.
Do you want that the same standard
should be applied to the same indu:-
try all over the country?

PROF. DAVE: Zones should be
divided into categories in which they
can have different standards. For
example, if one thermal power sta.
tion is located, gay, hundred 1niles
from Udaipur or Jodhpur, for ten
Yyears you can have liberal standards,
but in a popu'ated area it has to be
stricter.

MR, CHAIRMAN: It is not the
standard for each jndustry but it is
the totality of the pollution in each
area. Therefore, the same industry
located in Kashmir may have a diffe-
rent standarq from the same industry
located in Trombay.

There is one point which is not
directly connected with the Bill as
such but it js a point which hag roused
a good deal of interest in public and
that is the vexed question of Mathura
Reflnery and Taj Mahal. It is one
of the great monuments of mankind
and it has become a symbol of
threatened environmental pollution
and lot of heat has been generatei.
Do you have particular views on it?

PROF. DAVE: About Taj Mahal,
you have put me on the spot. I had
. \
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been associated with the Committee
from 1970 onwards. Actually, the
first objection ever raised was by
me as Adviser. The report came to
me that they were planning a refinery
at Mathura and at that time, I had
prepared a detailed note on that. In
that note, I pointed out the possible
impact on Taj Mahal and the alter-
native sites suggested by me were
Itarsi, Aligarh or Tundla.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Instead of going
into the past, would you please tell
us, what do we do now?

PROF. DAVE: I was a member of
that Committee and in August, 1977,
1 resigned from it Dbecause it was
rather manipulating the facts. We
do not have meteorological data or
wind frequency even of five years
nor do we have the temperature data
available. I do not think that any-
body can positively say that Taj
Mahal is safe. As far as air pollution
is concerned, as a matter of fact, the
people there have never done this
kind of field study in their lives. There
are many expert groups in the United
States with whom 1 had ccnsultations.
They said that there could be no
guarantee that Taj Mahal would be
safe. T personally believe that Lhere
is no concrete data available tc tell
conclusively that Taj Mahal will be
safe from the refinery emmission.

DR RAFIQ ZAKARIA: Reverse
can also haopen. Why do you pre.
sume that Taj Mahal is not safe?
You say that you don’t have any data.
But if it js available, reverse can also
happen.

PROF. DAVE: Yes Sir, this may be
true but the circumstances of wind
pattern, new industrial growths with
it make it unlikely. Also whatever
damage Taj Mahal has suffered has
come about in the last ten or fifteen
vears only. It was probably due to the
location of power plants there, because
there was air nollution earlier. So this
should have been rectified first before
new sources are added to the area.

Thre are also certain data available;
that the refinery would be dischurging
& certain amount of gulphur di-oxide,



which is a known fact. Secondly,
though it is not hundred per cent reli-
able, there is one pattern that will
transport sulphur di-oxide upto 40 kg.
near Taj. This data is not sufficient
to tell that there will be enough dilu-
tion or there will not be higher con-
centration; probability therefore is for
higher concentration for three or four
hours. Taj being near the Jamuna,
there will be more humidity and it
may go up to 60 per cent. So, marble
will be definitely affected. The expert
committee’s estimate report is 65 mg.
in a year. This is enough to damage
the Taj. That is one positive conclu-
sion that I can draw.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What about the
Agra pollution ag such? The Mathu-
ra reﬁner)'r has not come into being.
All the damage that has been done
so far to the Taj has been done with-
out the Mathura nefinery. That
means that there is already a lot of
pollution gctivity around Agra, which
has damaged the Taj, which cannot
be blamed on the Mathura refinery.
The whole Committee has gone to
Agra and studied the situation. We
have noticed that there are a lot of
local industries, particularly, found-
ries, railway marshalling yards, and
an anti-diluvian thermal plant. It
wag suggested that if firm and drastic
measure; are taken to remove them,
ithen there would be an automatic
drop in the potlution around Agra and
any additional pollution that may
come from the refinery will not have
any impact. What is your view?
If Taj is deteriorating, it is a matter
of great concern, quite apart from the
Mathura refinery.

PROF, DAVE: We are not looking
towards the protection of Taj only for
the next 50 years or 100 years but 500
years or more. Secondly, the local
pollution by the power plant, rail-
way marshalling yard and the found-
ries would come to shurt term concen-
tration of 65 mg. in winter. When
the reflnery is commissioned, it will
add another 65 mg. So, air pollution
will be doubled. Regarding drastic
measures on existing units will of
course, it will be political deci-
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sion, a Government decision and a
scientist cannot give any opinion. I
am only giving my logic. It is also to
be considered how can we prevent
pollution due to the natural growth of
Agra. The foundries are small
cottage industries whaich have bkeen
flourishing for loag, it {s rather
the birth-right of those people to
carry on their profession. It wil
a'so affect a large number of people.
On the other hand, if we ghift the
refinery, it will golve all the problems,

MR. CHAIRMAN: As a scientist,
why are you soft to the local popula-
tion? Pollution ig bad, whether it
comeg from the Mathura refinery or
from Agra city. How are you divid-
ing it into two categories benign pol-
lution and malignint pollution? For
pollution both are equally bad.

SHRI A. R. ANTULAY: I think we
are doirg a little injustice to Prof.
Dave. If 1 have understood him
correctly, it 1s not as if he is saying
that the Mathura refinery should be
shifted and nothing should be done
about local pollution. He is only
saying that it would be different to
deprive the local people of their pro-
fession and further its impact would
be very negligible, whereas the effect
of the Mathura refinery would be fo
couble the vollution. Perhaps, the
inference ig that while we cannoi
avoid the local pollution we can at
least avoid this,

MHR. CHAIRMAN: But let us as-
sume the Mathura refinery is not
there. Evea then the Taj is still
deteriorating.

DR, RAFIC. ZAKARIA: According
‘¢ you, what us the extent of the poil-
lution by thz local population ana
what would be the addition of pollu-
tion by the Mathura refinery, when
it comes into being '

PROF. DAVE: In my recent article
in the Illustrated Weekly I have ex-
plained that there is sufficient pollu--
tion to cause concern, so far as Taj
iz concerned, due to local factors.
The local action to protect the Taj
should be to take steps to help reduge
thig pollution, As you hnve stated, Sir



tne most rational approach would be
:to take immediate steps to shift the
power gtation, the marshalling yard
tnd ‘he foun' ies from fi..a ety
But, if we are ont able to do it and
on the other hand, bring a massive
load of pollution from outside it will
aggragate the situation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your point is
well taken. You have stated that the
people who have done the survey were
not really competent to do so.

PROF. DAVE: The consulting firm
have no experience of such surveys.
Further, they have not under-
‘taken a study of the impact of sul-
phur dioxide from a distance, any-
where in their country or elsewhere.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you think it
is useful to have another group of
experts to look into this problem or
do you think that, as far as you are
concerned, the matter has heen proved
without any further necessity of going
into it?

PROF. DAVE: There are two points,
Fo-s¢ in seventy years of Committee
work we have met only six or seven
‘times. If we appoint a second Com-
mittee, it will take another flve years
and by that time the refinery would

be completed, if no action is taken
immediately.

SHR] VASANT SATHE: Then our
Committee will fall into a very se-
rious trap, if we do not take note of
the fact that for the last seven years,
right from the beginning, particularly
‘from 1973 onwards, repeated objec-
tions have been taken. At that time
only land was acquired, worth abouit
Rs. 3 crores or 4 crores. And when
objections were taken, they said: All
right, an expert committee is going
into it” While the expert committee
wag going jinto it, they did not stop
further expansion. They went ahezd,
made further invesiments go that s
‘fait accompli is presented to the
countrv, to thes Parliament and to
the Committee. They said: ‘Look,
now we have spent 3o much. Now it
“will be futile to think of shifting and
therefore, you must consider the best
‘way of avoiding or minimising this
pollution which modern technology or

science ¢an do, and therefore, another’
expert committee will be appointed
to go into it and we have this ‘com-
mitteology’ which goeg into this.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: The expert
committee itself was bogus.

PROF, DAVE: We had presented
our viewpoint to the Committee and
my opinion is also accepted abroad.
1 have just finalised the programme
with the Middle<East Director in
charge of pollution. If we can advise
others. I don’t think that we need
more experts and the present expert
Committee could have taken into
aczount all the viewpoinig that were
presented.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very
much, Prof. Dave. Your assistance
is very valuable, '

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: In case we
can’t do anything about the Mathura
refinery and it goes into action, how
long do you think it will take before
the Taj is completely disfigured?

PROF. DAVE: May be 50 to 100
years, but if steps can be taken to re-
duce pollution from the Refinery, but
it can pe prolonged g litile but it wiil
be at an exhorbitant cost, I had given
about it earlier in my submission tv
the Ministry, I do not want to come
out with all the figures, but it wouid
be something like Rs. 20 crores to be
spent for the coatrol of the polluticn
from the Refinery.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA:
crores capital expenditure?

PROF. DAVE: Rs. 20 crores plus
they should acquire another 5§ or 6
kilometer belt of land about one kilo-
metre south of the R2flnery and cons-
truct orest round the Taj Mahal on the
northern side and this is a very ex.
pensive proposition. All it can do i#
to reduce the danger to the Taj Mehal
but not protect it totally.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How much it can
be brought down?

PROF DAVE: It can be
down by 5 or 10 micrograms.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very
much, Dr. Dave.

(The witness then withdraw)

Rs, 20
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11. Shri B. K, Thapar,

Director-General of
Archaeological Survey of India
New Deihi.

Acsisted by:

‘Shri B. N, Tandon
Director (Science)
ASI, New Delhi.

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro-
ceed, may I draw your attention to
Direction 58 of the Directions by the
Speaker which reads as follows:

“58. Where witnesseg appear be-
fore a Committee to give evidence,
the Chairman shall make it clear
to the witnesses that their evid-
ence should be treated gs public and
is liable to be published, unless they
specifically desire that all or any
part of the evidence given by them
is to be treated as confildential. It
shall however, be explained to the
witnesses that even though they
might desire their evidence to be
treated as confidential guch evid-
ence is liable to be made available
t0 the Members of Parliament.”

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. Thapar,
you have given us a note on the Agra
monument and in that you have sum-
med up what has happened, but yecu
have not given any recommendation.
Why is it that the ASI is fighting shy
of making clear the recommendations
with regard to Mathura Refinery. At
the end of your note, what do you
say? What the Committee would like
to know is, what is the considered
view of the ASI.

SHRI THAPAR: I would like to
submit that I do agree that in the
note which I submitted to you last
time, we had not given our recom-
mendations, but during the discus-
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sions with the Expert Committee, we
had all the time been making it clear
that we would not like the Reflnery
to be located at Mathura. Our racom-
mendations in short would be three
fold: (a) the location of the refinery
from its present position be shifted,
(b) there should be some sort of
mandatory orders for the shifting of
the existing contributory factors of
the pollution viz. the power plants,
the marshalling yards and th2 found-
rieg; (¢) in view of the disputed na-
ture of the findings of the Technico
and others, we are of the view that
a body of International experts on
Environmental Engineering should go
through the Reports.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your suggestion
is that the refinery should be shifted.
If that is your suggestion, where
does the question of an International
body of experts going into the Re-
ports arise?

SHRI THAPAR:; I do agree that if
the first two parts of our recommen-
dations are agreed, then the third
one does not arise.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: What do you mean by
“mandatory orders for shifting the
existing pollutants™?

SHRI THAPAR: There are three
existing pollutants—thermal power
plants are there, two of them, about
300 foundriegy and the marshalling
yards are there, The marshalling yard
is under the Railway Ministry. The
power plants are with the Govern-
ment of UP and the iron foundries
and local industries which are coal
based are under the control of the
UP Government. From the Centre, I
feel, that there should be some sort
of instructions, there should be some
sort of effective means go that these
two things which are jn the purview
of the State Government are shifted.

MR CHAIRMAN: Apart from the
Taj, are there any other monuments
in India that are likely to be affected
by pollution? Apart from Agra, any-
where else in India?



SHRI THAPAR: It is going to be
a problem even at Elephanta . be-
cause there is a refinery near about.

MR. CHAIRMAN: At Elephanta, is
it going to be affected by the indus-
tries that are already there or by
the new refinery. that is planned?

SHRI THAPAR: We have not as
yet measured air pollution level at
Elephanta.  Considering .that  the
same factor would apply, we appre-
hend that the prébiem would become
apprehensive.

"MR. CHAIRMAN: Some hon. Mem-
bers have expressed and I did also
that we would have expected- that
the ASI, to whom the upkeep and
maintenance of these monuments has
specifically been assigned, would
really have raised this problem. Why
is it that the ASI simply seems to
be reacting whenever somebody else
makes noise rather than taking the
initiative? = Surely it is your res-
ponsibility. It so happeng that there
may be environmental minded scien-
tists who are launching a crusade.
You have not studied it in Elephan-
ta. Is it not a rather negative and
disappointing attitude on the part of
ASI?

SHRI THAPAR: T would lke to
submit in respect of this how the
AS] did take the inmitiative, An.soon
as the decision to lecate the Mathura
reflnery at Mathura was tpken,  we
did apprehend all these problems and
in fact we asked the NEERI to un-
dertake these surveys or investiga-
tions. The ASI wag not
fully equipped to..undertake such
surveys. We asked them to do it
and they did it. After that, we have
all along been fighting it. I certain-
ly agree that we have not made a
big, noige about this problem through
public media.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In the ASI do
You have any Cell or any particular
Division dealing with air pollution?

SHRI THAPAR: After the Expert
Committee’s report was submitted,
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we felt we must have a small Cell,
and we have located one at Agra.
We have also a Laboratory at Dehra
Dun where we are going in for some
sample tests. In the meantime we
have done some sort of test of the
affected parts of the monuments st
Agra and Delhi. We have imported
some equipment and are getting some
equipment indigenously for evaluat-
ing the measure of air pollution.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: There
was some news item that there is a
modern technique of coating these
monuments with some plasting type
of thing which retains the look and,
at the same time, protects the
monuments from these pollutants. Is
any such thing possible for monu-
ments like the Taj?

SHRI THAPAR: As you have
rightly said, there are some chemi-
calg like polymelon, cynamide, dyna-
celon etc. We are experimenting
with them  But before we apply
them én a permanent basis we have

to see that any applicating or coating

of the chemicals does not affect the
stone. Secondly, it should also be
reversible so that, supposing that it
ig deleterious to the stone, it can be
removed. During “the last few
months we have tried “polymelon
acetate etc. and the new thing which
is now being experimented is called
dynacelon. 2

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Have you
also given thought to one fantastic
idee of having a glass dome around
the Taj or such monuments?

MR. CHATRMAN: There was once
a suggestion that the whole of New
Yoik City should be put under a
huge dome.

_SHRI VASANT SATHE: Modern
technology is thinking of all sorts of
things.” It may sound fantastic to-
day but, if about Rs. 400 crores to
Rs. 500 crores are to be spent on a
refinery, if for about Rs. 50 crores or
less a glass dome could be raised aro-
und the Taj, probably it could be
protected fromr all the air pollution.



Have you given thought to such an
idea?

SHR]I THAPAR: We have not
worked out the details or the cost
factor of such a thing but I would
think that this is not an easy solu-
tion because there would be the
factor of humidity inside, unless you
make it absolutely air-tight. This
.should be tried only when all other
things fail.
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SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: Coming back to the point about
preservatives, you have said that
you are carrying out some ex-
periments on the spot. But, gup-
posing it harms the stone of the
monuments? You have saig it
is not yet known whether it is
reversible or not.

SHRI THAPAR: Firstly, we
applying the preservative in
areag on the spot......

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: But you do not know yet
whether it jg reversible or not.

SHRI THAPAR: We will be know-
ing it within three to four months.

MR, CHAIRMAN: What the Hon.
Member meang is that if this is only
an experiment, would it not be
wiser to conduct the experiment
elsewhere rather than at the Taj be-
cause, in case it is not reversible,
nothing can be done about it.

are
small

SHRI THAPAR: We are taking
samples of some parts—some sort of
cuts—and finding out from the sam-
ples whether there is any trace of
their being affected by the sulphate
already in the atmosphere.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Has there been
any result yet?

SHRI THAPAR: I must say that
g0 far we have got a trace of sul-
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phate and we are trying to find out
whether there are other elements.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Have
these chemicals been tried eisewhere
or are you trying them for the first
time?

SHRI TANDON: They have been
tried elsewhere and it was said they
are reversible. A British irm which
has recommended the material to us
has said it is one of the finest,

MR. CHAIRMAN: They have tried
it out in Italy it seema.

SHRI TANDON: Yes, and in Eng-
land also. A problem arose when we
tried another material, but they
have said this is a better material
which is now available with them.
We are trying it out both at the
gite and at the laboratory.

SHR] VASANT SATHE: You know
that in the Taj there are fine car-
vings and inlay work etc. So, apart
from the marble part, can these also
be coated without damaging the real
beauty and lustre of the inlaid wurk?

SHRI THAPAR: They can be
coated because we are doing it by the
spray method, we are not applying
it with a brush.
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SHRI TANDON: All the preserva-
tives which we are using are trans-
parent in nature. They will not
change the colour. The colour will
always remain the same.. If we use
0.5 per cent, no one will beg able to
find out whether any change has taken
place. The ideal preservative is one
which does not change anything,
which will be only a kind of = very
thin layer. '

SHRI VASANT SATHE: How
long will it last?

SHRI TANDON: For about ten
years,

SHR] VASANT SATHE: After ten
years, you have to give another
coating?

SHRI TANDON: We remove that
coating and give ancther,

MR. CHATRMAN: It is now a well
established practice. The ancient
monuments and statues cannot
simply be allowed to deteriorate.
There are certain chemicals within
the stoneg themselves. So, the clean-
ing up of monuments ig a well
accepted fact. It has been done in
Brihadeeswarar Temple and alsp in
Ajanta and Ellora. Even in Italy, to
preserve the great works ol art, there
is a constant process of cleaning. The
new development is, after cleaning, if
possible, to apply or spray a trans-
parent preservative; that preser-
ves it from further deterioration
without in any way adversely affect-
ing its artistic quality. This is now
a well established technology. All
that they are trying to do is to apply
that technology on a huge monument
like the Taj. This is my under-
standing.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: The Archaeological Sur-
vey of India is responsible for the
preservation of the monuments. This
problem of pollution has been there
even before. The public awareness is
of recent origin. Ag a specialised
body, what did the ASI do in this
respect? Apart from Taj, there are so

-

I.)

many other monumentg like the
Victoria Memorial in Calcutta. Cal-
cutta i8 a city where the pollution
factors are quite strong. Has any-
thing been done to maintain its
beauty?

Regarding Taj Mahal, I want to
ask this question. Has this coating
been tried to foreign countries? A
specific answer has not been received.
Have you examined those instances
where it has been applied and were
any difficulties evidenced in the use
of these coating? Have you gathered
this information so far as using these
coatings is concerned?

SHRI THAPAR: About the second
part whether we have got the evi-
dence to prove that these recom-
mended chemicals or preservatives
have been applied on monuments in
other countries, I must confess that
we have not got any report to say
that these have been applied on
monuments, say, in Ttaly or in
Athens where a lot of marble has
been used. But, ag my colleague has
said, the firm is manufacturing it;
and the possible assumption is that it
must be manufacturing after a lot
of experiments. They have recom-
mended that thig is a preservative
cuoting for marble which they have
tested at various places,

MR. CHAIRMAN: We can always
test. If there is a new product that
hus been produced, we do not have
to wait for many years till it is
tested in Athens or Italy We can
test.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: A certificate from the
firm is not enough. I was only trying
to find out whether they have any
precedents to go by—any precedents
in other countries.

MR. CHATRMAN: What was your
first question?

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: What has the ASI, as an
organisation responsibje for the pre-
servation of ancient monuments,



done in this regard? It is not a
quesiion of Taj alone, There are so
many other monuments. I have cited
the instance of Victoria Memorial.

SHRI THAPAR: The only explana-
tion I can give about this is that, as
far as environmental or atmospheric
poliution is concerned, it is only
during the last 10 or 15 years that
we have become alive in this situa-
tion—that something can happen
through atmospheric pollution also.
Otherwise, ASI, as an organisation, is
certainly entrusted with the task of
preserving the cultural heritage of
this country, and we have done our
work in a modest way or grand way,
whatever it is. We had always felt
that the reasons were, largely, the
ageing factors. The idea that such
things could occur through atmos-
pheric pollution also, I must confess,
is only about 15 years’ old.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: I want to
know from Mr. Thapar whether
under the law, his organisation has
effective powers to prevent this
kind of deterioration as a result
of air pollution or other ways. My
own feeling, as far as this organisa-
tion is concerned, is that they are not
very effective; a lot of deterioration
of monumentg is taking place: there
are also a lot of delays taking place
where prompt action needs to be
taken. In view of this new danger
of pollution, I would like to know
from Mr. Thapar what are the weak-
nesses in his organisation, in what
way he would like to be armed with
powers, so that these monuments are
properly protected and preserved. As
you know, these monuments _are—
great works of art as far as our
country is concerned and we cannot
trifie with them. The ASI is now
only a limb of the Education Min-
istry with very few effeetive men
and control al] over the country. They
will have to be very vigilant in wWew
of this new danger of pollution. And
I do not think you have teeth in
your organization or the powers to be
really effective. If I am wrong I will

be very happy.
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SHRI R. K. MHALGI; Is there any
cell in your Department to study this
atmospheric pollution?

SHRI THAPAR: Ajs far as the cell
is concerned, as I just now pointed
out, we have for the last 2 months
already created a cell working. We
have got some staff which are work-
ing on this.

As far as the present Act is
concerned, which is called the An-
cient Monuments and Archaeological
Sites and Remains Act of 1958 does
not have any powers, any clauseg to
the effect that we can stop any indus-
tries coming about. It is only under
some section that we can declare
certain areas as prohibiteq whereby
You can control that a certain miniag
operation should not be done or any
such thing. That would only be with
reference to a protected site. I cite a
small instance. At Baroda there is a
site called Champaner which is on a
hill. Nearabout that hill a lot of
quarrying operations were going on
under a contract. We thought by
Quarrying there would be some sort
of tremorg caused. So we declared
that area prohibited. That is the
only power that we have under the
Act, After we could declare an area
protected, or prohibited the quarry-
ing operations could be stopped.

We had a similar problem in Sra-
vanabelagola where some quarrying
was going on. The land was not
ours. Ourg is a smal] monument or
a little bit of the area.

Whatever we have notified in the
earlier times. But under the Act with
reference to a monument the conti-
guous land could be declared as
prohibited area whereby such acti-
vities can be stopped.

DR. ;LAI"IQh ZAKARIA: There is
80 much of theft taking place and I
think they have beep helpless about
it, I know even in Daulatabad a lot
of things are still continuing.

MR. CHAIRMAN:
there was a major theft,

Nalanda



DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: Taking
advantage of this thing we may say
that unless they are really armed
with necessary powers, most of these
things cannot be stopped.

1 want to know whether apart from
the powers that we give to the Board,
we also say that you are not suffi-
ciently armed sp that you may be
able to take certain action . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Perhaps a
general recommendation may go. It -
is not directly under the Act. A

paragraph conceivably could be added
pointing out 'particularly the role of

the Archaeologica] = Survey of
Indiag . . .
DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: We may

recommend that that Act also should

be suitably amended giving Archaeo-
logical Survey of India whatever
further  necessary organizational
powers it requires.

SHR] THAPAR:__'I_[_‘Qere is no limit.
The limit is thé workability.

As far as the power is concerned,
the ASI sometimes feels very help-
less. Whenever modern development
schemes come up spccially in big
towns like Delhi and other places
where the land does not belong tuv us,
we cannot possibly purchase the
land near the monument, we cannot
purchase 500 sq. metres because the
lang is very costly. At best 40 metres
or 50 metres around a monument we
can have as g protected limit. Beyond
40 metres or 50 metres when the
development schemes come up and
high rise buildings come up we have
no power to stop them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We are going
slightly off our main subject. We are
dealing with pollution. But the point
Shri Zakaria made was whether in
the light of the new threat of pollu-
tion of which we have now become
aware, strengthening of your organi-
sation either by amending the Act or
in other ways is being done or
whether you think it is worthwhile for
our committee to make some recom-
mendations to thig effect.
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SHRI THAPAR: I would submit
that the committee make a recom-
mendation to that effect. We can
take up the amendment.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: Already
there i8 a provision that when any
industry comes up unless they pro-
duce a no-objection certificate from
the Water Pollution Board, the
licence is not granted. Similarly in
the case of any industrial develop-
ment which is likely to take place
nearabout monuments, some kind of a

no-objection certificate from the
Archaeologica] Survey may be
insisted. - .

MR. CHAIRMAN:. That is a
posaibility. I

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Cerlain
monumentg are under the care of the
State' PWD, i.e, the State Executive
Engineer. There they wake up after
much damage has taken place to the
monuments, This has happened in
case of the Taj. If somebody makes
a report, then only the Archaeological
Survey becomes aware of it and then
they issue a notice. Cannot you take
action before any damage takes
place?

SHR] THAPAR: As far as the ASI
is concerned, it is responsible for the
monuments which are declared to be
of national imwoortance., All othar
monuments which are not of natiocnal
importance are iooked after by the
respective State Departmenis of
Archaeology.

Some of the State Departments-of
Archaeology are adequately equipped
to take up preservation of monuments
while others are not, particularly,
with reference to thc preservation of
monuments in the sense that they do
not have qualified conservators. So,
what they do is, us you rightly point-
ed out just now, that they delegate
the power for preservation of monu-
ments to the PWD. PWD engineers
are certainly qualified engineers but
then there is a subtle difference bet-
ween a civil engineer and a conserva-
tor. What sort of restoration he will



do and upto what limit he will restore
and upto what limit he will prescrve?

With regard to the first part of the
question which you raised, as I point-
ed out earlier, we have taken some
samples which have given us evidence
that the sulphur di-oxide is acting
on the marble.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very
much, Mr. Thapar. We will keep in
touch with you.

In the afternoon we are meeting at
3 o'clock when the General Muanager
of Mathura Refinery is coming.

Prof. Shivaji Rao wants to show us
some slides. I was wondering whether
the Lok Sabha Secretaria: could make
‘the arrangements. C

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Can we have a joint sit-
ting of Mr. Nayak and Prof. Shivaji
Rao?

MR, CHAIRMAN: Let us see, First
of all, I was wondering whether some

photographs could be temporarily

taken so that we could have a little
projection.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: I think we
should hear the General Manager of
the Mathura Refinery afterwards. We
should hear Shri Shivaji Rao first.

MR. CHAIRMAN: According to pro-
gramme, the General Manager is giv-
ing his evidence first and then comes
Shri Shivaji Rao. Do you want to
reverse this order?

Let both of them be together.
Anyway we meet at 3 o'clock.
(The Committee adjourned at 13.00
hours and reassembled at 15.15 hours)

——

M. Shri S. K. Nayak, General Manager,
Mathura Refinery Project, 10C,
Mathura.

Assisted by:
Shri V. S. More, Manager (Pollution
Control).

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat),

1

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro-
ceed, may I draw your attention to
Direction 58 of the Directions by the
Speaker which reads as follow:

“58. Where witnesses appear be-
fore a Committee to give evidence,
the Chairman shall make it clear to
the witnesseg that their evidence
shall be treated as public and is
liable to be published, unless they
specifically desire that al] or any
part of the evidence given by them
is tc be treated as confidential. It
shall, however, be explained to the
witnesgses that even though they
might desire their evidence to be
treated as confidential such evidence
is liable to be made available to the
Members of Parliament.”

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let us start. We
have with us Mr. S. K. Nayak, Gene-
ra] Manager, Mathura Refinery Pro-
ject and Mr, V. S. More.

Mr, Nayak, we met you in Mathura
and we had some discussion with re-
gard to the Mathura Refinery in res-
pect of Taj. Subsequently, the con-
troversy has deepened and the Com-
mittee has been given a great fund of
argument in favour of shifting the
site of the Mathura Refinery. Not
only the environmentalists, but also
the Archaeologi¢cal Survey of India
have now moved on to that position
and made a clear rccommendaticn
that the site should be .shifted. We
are gravely concerned "with this. This
morning, we had some experts who
pointed out that the existing level of
pollution in Agra is already high, and
even if attempts are made to take
some steps there, and even assuming
that those are successful fully—which
is unlikely—the additional burden on
the air pollution situation that = will
necessarily be caused by the Mathura
Refinery is something which should
be avoided, in the long-term interests
of our national heritage.

You have already given ug your
views.. If [ remember correctly, when
vou met us at Mathura you said that



you were considering certain anti-
pollution methods to bring down the
pollution. Is there anything that you
would like to add to what you have
already said, or should we ask certain
questiong in this regard?

SHRI NAYAK: 1 think whatever
measures we have taken, and are go-
ing to take, and other rieasures that
would be available in case pollution
level has to be reduced further—have
been placed before you.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Prof. Dave said
that there were certain fairly exten-
sive anti-pollution measures which
might cost us about Rs. 25 crores
which, if taken, could substantially
reduce the pollution, although even
then he did not think it shouid be
there.

SHRI NAYAK: The anti-pollution
measures we Dropose are basic mea-
sures, in the sense that we are irying
to limit the source of pollution, and
not contro] it, after they occur. At
the present moment as per calcula-
tions, we have said that on the basis
of using low sulphur fuel and sulphur-
free gas, we can limit the emissions
of sulphur di-oxide which is being
talked about as the main pollutant, to
less than 1-tonne per hour.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Somebody talk-
ed about 65 micrograms.

SHRI NAYAK: There are two psra-
meters in air pollution. One is the
emission, and the other is the air
quality on account of emission. When
I said emission, it is the total amount
of sulphur di-oxide which will be
emitted from the various effluents
stacks or chimneys from the refinery.
Ag a result of this emission, on the
basis of mathematica] models which
have been normally used everywhere
and ag is done by the studies made by
the Indian Meteorological Department,
the average annua] concentration of
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sulphur di-oxide at Agra on account
of the emission of 1-ton of sulphur
di-oxide per hour from the refinery
would be of the order of 1 to 2 micro.
grams per cubic metre,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Of course, it will
be much higher in certain periods of

the year.

SHRI NAYAK: It could be. It has
been said that during winter
months, the dispersal of pol-
lutants is generally difficult,
Normally, the temperature gradient
is—the higher you go, it is cocler;
but in winter months sometimes the
ground gets cooler quicker, with the
result that the upper atmosphere
temperatures are higher. When the
upper temperature is higher, what-
ever is emitted, tends to settle duwn
till the temperature gradient goes up
and dispersal takes rlace. It has
been established by the Indian Meteo-
rological Department that it could
occur 2 to 4 per cent in the winter
months. The wind directions then
forwards over Agra could be of the
order of 18 per cent to 24 per cent.
Both of these, occurring at the same
time, is a rare possibility. And even
if it occurs, it has been estimated that
at that time it could be the short-time
concentration. It can be about 63
micro-gramg for half-an-hour. But
this is theory. During this particular
period, the wind's velocity is gene-
rally ,low; and there will also be a
certain amount of mist and fog. At
that time, the scavanging of these
pollutants, paMicularly sulphur di-
oxide, ag it goes through this, has not
been taken into account.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Committee is
very gravely concerned about what
will happen to the Taj as a result of
this refinery. There geems to be an
element of uncertainty in the calcu-
lations because these are hypothetical
figures based on mathematical models
etc. So, there is no assurance that the
situation wil] not be worse than is ex-
pected. Once a reflnery is get up, it



goes on for ever; and the Taj will
also be constantly menaced. 1 am
aware that a certain amount of money
has been spent. How much money
hag actually been spent so far?

SHRI NAYAK: Upto December, it
is about Rs. 100 crores—on the refi-
nery side. On the pipeline side, some-
thing more has been spent,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: How much
on civil construction, and how much
on machinery? Will you give the
break-up?

SHRI NAYAK: I don't have the
figures at the present moment. Brosd.
ly, the land cost is about Rs. 1 crore.
Buildings—mostly foundations etc.
have cost Rs. 10 crores to Rs. 15 crores
on civi] works, which are all under-
ground.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We visited some
of these buildings.

SHR] NAYAK: Those are buildings
for office and so on. The rest of them
are foundations, sleepers and other
things. The remaining part is equip-
ment, materials and connccted works.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Mr. Nayak,
can you tell me any valid reasons in
this regard? Suppose even if we
think that there is a ten per cent
chance or one per cent chance of
Mathura and Agra monuments being
affected adversely today or toniorrow
or 50 years hence, and so the refinery
has to be shifted from there, what
basic objection can you have?

SHRI NAYAK: This is a matter of
decision and I think I have no autho-
rity or competence to take a decision
or to put objections.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Techni-
cally what objection can there be?

MR. CHAIRMAN: If he is ordered
by an order of the Government of
India saying, shift it to Trivandrum,
for instance, he would shift it ¢o
Trivandrum. That ig all. Ag a civil
servant he would obey the order.
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SHRI VASANT SATHE: My ques--
tion is somewhat different. Techni-
cally what difficulty is there? If ma-
chinery is there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1t can be shifted
elsewhere.

SHR] VASANT SATHE: - That is
why I asked a question. I wanted to
know the details. Construction of
buildings would itself amount to about
Rs. 80 crores. Those buildings are
only for a particular type of work.
Therefore it would have created pro-
blems when you think of shitting those.
buildings. That is why I asked that
question. If it is Rs. 15 crores and.
mostly foundations, we can think of
it. In regard to feasibility purposes,
I would again raise this question,
whether today there will be any
technical difficulty or any practical
difficulty with regard to shifting, if
this hag got to be ghifted? I am not
talking of any theoretical thing.

SHRI NAYAK: If I understand ycu
right, the question is, what are the
implications in case the decision is
taken to shift this refinery.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That will depend
upon where it is shifted.

SHR]I VASANT SATHE: That s
why it is not Trivandrum. When I
say, UP. I know why the decisiun
was taken. That is why I said that.
The decision was taken becauss it
must be at the consumer’s point, in
the North.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let me concre-
tise the issue. A suggestion has been.
made that it could be shifted with ad-
vantage to Etawah or in the direction
of Etawah and the existing buildings.
there could be used for storage and
for transport and distribution require-
ments so that the existing buildings
are not completely wasted. That is
the point made. There are number of
components during the distribution
stage, during the storage stage and so
on. One guggestion made is this that
the actua] polluting units may be-



shifted away from Mathura, to Hat.i-
ras or Etawah and the existing build-
ings and services could be used for
-other purposes connectad with tue
project. How would that be techni-
cally Jooked at by you?

SHRI NAYAK: Irrespective of what
use we can make of whatever the
-existing facilities are, when the re-
finery complex is shifted, we have to
shift all the total facilities provided.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Can this not be
bifurcated to some extent? One ex-
pert said that it can be bifurcated.

SHR] NAYAK: In refinery opera-
tiong we have the gtorage tanks. 1
am glving it as an example. We do
have tankers. Tn the case of these
refineries the storage is meant - for
-operation flexibility. Suppose one
particular product is getting delayved

the entire refinery need not be shut.

-down,

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is an inter-
nal affair. That is not a major storage
problem,

SHRI NAYAK: It is one thing if we
can have it at a small distance where
you can have a pipeline and utilise
the existing tankage facilities.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It has been stated
roughly that about 80 to 86 per cent
of the investment has gone towards
what are called equipments. We
therefore would assume this. If the
site is shifted those equipments can
also be shifted and used in the new

place,

SHRI NAYAK: Let me say this.
Whan I said, equipment apd  machi-
nery for example 20,000 tonne capa-
city of tanks is under construction and
we have completed about 10,000 to
12,000 tonnes of these constructions.
We have taken up consiruction of
other things. We have got to dis-
mantle it if we have to shift. We
have te completely transport it there.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: Would this be
within the 15 crores or 85 crores?

SHRI NAYAK: 85 crores. 1 will
give you the implications of shifting.
Site-selection is the first thing. We
have to think of the availability of
water supply. We have to think of
availability of suitable place for
effluent discharge, availability of com-
munications, etc. Availability  of
power and other aspects and the speed
with which we can acquire (hem,
cannot be predicted. Thirdly, the
equipment has been erected, the struc-
tures have been put up and most of
the critical vessels are over-sized.

MR. CHAIRMAN: ] recall that Ali-
garh and Etawah were the two alter-
native sites which were considered
earlier apparently from the point of
view of pollution o tie monuments
and the population. Aligarh and
Etawah will give tota] protection to
the monuments. Last year a decision
was taken to shift it to Aligarh or
Etawah. Now if we go to one of
these places how much utilisation we
wil]l be able to do

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Now, there
are two important places on the river
bank, Apart from these two rivers,
ig there no place where you can dis-~
charge your efluent without affecting
the historical places, the devotees of
Mathura and other people?

SHR1 JAGDISH PRASAD MA-
THUR: At first, it was suggested that
Sawai Madhopur may be selected. But
the Government tonk the decision to
have it in Mathura keeping in view
'some points.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are certain
parameters, certain  pre-requisites
which .are there. Let us hear Mr.
Nayak on this point,

SHRI NAYAK: The question is
about the total time that has been
taken to come up to this level. Now
the point is that you have already
spent a certain amount on this and
whatever you have got to spend to



recover and reuse it. But there are
other factors, for example, what is the
effect on the tota] economy? Now,
thig is something which off-hand I
cannot say.

SHRI VASANT SATIIE: Have you
any idea supposing we were to re-
construct the Taj, how much will it
cost?

SHRI NAYAK: Now, the necessity
for a refinery in the North-West re-
gion was on account of the fact that
the demand for petroleum products is
.so much that after 80's we cannot meet
it by present transportation manner
which we are doing and that is why it
was necessary to have a refinery
somewhere in the North--West region
preferably near Delhi. This was the
recommendation of the first feasibi-
lity report. The Government then
asked us if for some considerations
Delhj is not suitable, any alternative
location between Agra and Delhi, of
course as far away from Delhi as
possible, can be anggested. Then, on
certain technical considerations,
Mathura wag chosen in 1972. As it 15,
-apart from other reasoms, the present
shortage of diesel and kerosene would
have posed problems in fulure. Even
if the products were available, the
question of transportation would have
posed problems. If we decide to
shift the refinery—I am not competcnt
in this matter—it would mean, any-
thing between three and four years
further delay. Selection of site,
availability of water, transport, acqui-
sition of land are all problems for
which nobody can put any time limit.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How long has it
taken you to bring the refinery to the
Ppresent stage?

SHRI NAYAK: The actual construc-
tion started at site in the November,
*76.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That means, two
years and three months. Even if you
give one additional year's lead for
planning, you cannot possibly lose
more than 3% years.

2=
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SHR] NAYAK: We may lose more
than that, because the project
report. . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: You do not iave
to do everything again. Surely, the
work that has been dcne in finalising
the plan etc. will no: have to be done
again.

SHRI NAYAK: It will have to be
done depending upon the site.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But the basic
scheme of the project is not going to
change. You design a five-star hotel,
you can build it at Delhi or at Hvdera-
bad.

SHRI NAYAK: It is not that easy.
The entire plan will depend on the
particular gsize of the area etc.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Apart from tue
money, there will be a loss of time
between three and four years.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Will the
size of the tanker change because of
the size of the plant etc.?

SHRI NAYAK: It can changc be-
cause of the soil considerations. Be-
cause of the availability of space, we
have gone in for an 18 M high tanks
depending upon the goil condition. If
the site has to change, soil investiga-
tions will have to be done and it may
take a long time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What were the
other sites considered?

SHRI NAYAK: The recommendation
for setting up of the refinery was made
after taking into consideration all the
implications and it wag decided to con-
sider sites near Delhi, Hissar, Agra
and Sawai Madhopur. Subsequently,
the possibility of locating the reflnery
in MP was also considered. Various
sites were considered from the point
of view of techno-cconomic reasons
The data was submitted to the Govern-
ment and it was examined by the usua’
bodies of the Government and the
final decision was taken in  June,
1972. Whatever I sgay is net

based om my expertise, but on
- Toweman. SUMERNEEE 3



what I have gathered from others.

This must be understood.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Mr. More,
is your contribution to this?

SHRI NAYAK: Let me explain.
Mr. More js, of course Manager, Pol-
lution Control; but after the impor-
tance attached to pollution control,
myself and the management took a
decision that there will he a separate
pollution control cel]l in each refinery,
as well gas at the head office. Mr.
More has been there only for the last
One year.

what

SHRI MORE: I am in this position
for about 2 years, working for pollu-
tion control. Before that, I was work-
ing for 10 years in various disciplines
in petroleum refining. When a deci-
sion wag taken that we should have a
pollution control cell in the I0C, I
was given enough opportunity to go
abroad for training, and for visiting
other institutiong in India and abroad,
1 have got sufficient background of 1it.
Of course, I cannot claim that I am
an expert in this field, there are many
experts who have explained the posi-
tion. Secondly, I way associated with
the Mathura refinery which has its
own pollution control mneasures. The
training I had, was not only with
Indian experts, but with some foreign
experts who were involved in these
studies. A lot of discussion was tliere
about various theories. There wecre
many consultations with Indian and
foreign experts. But I am not an
expert.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you have any
particular views on the problems we
have discussed? -

SHRI MORE: As a chemical engi-
neer, I have some views, after spend-
ing about 12 years in refineries in
operation. Some of the experts have
apprehensions about the refinery.
Petroleum refining is a simple process,
refining crude petroleum into products
which are used by everybody. Basi-
cally it is a distillation process. Since
I was working in shifts for quite a
few years, I know that the first lesson
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given to any operator or any engi-
neer in the refinery 1s that in cascs
of emergency you run to the furnaces
and stop the burners. If thcre are:
power or steam failures, we have to
run and stop firing while we burn fuel
in our furnaces, everything else, is
a closed operation, because we gzre
dealing with liquid products which are.
highly inflammable. They are cun-
tained in closed containers and then
stored in tanks. But the heat energy
required comes from the fuel gas
which we burn in the furnace. It is
our major gource of emission. When
an emergency comes, basically the
emission will come to zero, because
our engineers will rush to the fur-
nace and stop the burners. We have
automatic controls also. Practically,
everything is based on the need for
safety.

Since fuel to furnaces ig cut off,
there is no emission from the refinery.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: In normal
working, when you burn fuel through
chimneys, is there no ncrmal, regular
emissions day-to-day?

SHRI MORE: There is emission.
We have estimated that it will come to
less than 1-tonne per hour of sulphur
dioxide.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That ig the ave-
rage that you were taking for the
whole year. Even then, it is quite
likely to create certain pollution prob-
lem. It has been suggested that with
the additiona] expenditure of Rs. 20°
croregs to Rs. 25 crores, it is possible
to substantially raduce the sulphur
dioxide emissions. Have you studied
this aspect at all in detail?

SHRI NAYAK: There are two pro-
cesses which have been commercially
put into operation after some pilot
plant studies. These processeg are at
the present moment being utilized for
reducing the sulphur dioxide from
fuel gases in the stacks. The approxi.
mate efficiency of this is about 80 per
cent to 90 per cent, provided a certain
amount of high concentration is there:



‘They are used for bringing emission
from a high level to a low level,
which jg achieved by using low sul-
phur fuel.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is a questios-
.able estimate.

SHRI NAYAK: If we put in this
process also, we will not get 90 per
<cent reduction. We may get 60 per
cent, or 50 per cent reduction. The
©other aspect which arose last time, is
that even if it is 40 per cent, why
should we not do it? [ will summa-
Tize how this problem has bren
tackled. One is to see what is the
minimum you can achieve by adopt-
ing a very simple method i.e. to what
extent you can reduce emission by
«controlling things at the basic point.
The gecond one is our estimate of
contribution to the Agra area and the
present level of Agra area; the pre-
sent condition of the monument and
historica] background. Now in Agra
at east the annual average of sulphur-
dioxide is about 15—20 microgramme
per cubic metre and this historical
thing has been there for the last many
‘years. These are contributed by some
foundries, power stations and a rail-
way shunting yard. With all this, it
has been found that there has becen no
effect on marble which can be account-
ed or directly attributed to sulphur-
dioxide.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Director-
General of Geological Survey has
confirmed that it had been found. It
is no use arguing that a great deal of
pollution has taken place already
without the refineries. Obviously it
has. But the real fear ig that with th2
pollution that already exists, even we
are not able to reduce it to some ex-
tent. If you add a source of pollution
permanently, it would be undesirable
in the broader interest of the monu-
ment. Lot of doubts have been e¢x-
pressed. We are at a stage where
there is no definite stage and a lot de-
rends on the way in which certain
Pproblems are looked at.

(The witness then withdrew)
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IV—Prof. T. Shivaji Rac Professor in
Environmnta] Health Engineering,
Andhra University, Waltair.

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Bcfore we pro-
ceed, may I draw your attention to
Direction 58 of the Directions by the
Speaker which reads as follows:

“58. Where witnesses appear before
a Committee to give evidence, the
Chairman shall make it clear to the
witnesses that their evidence shall
be treated ag public and is liable to
be published, unless they specifically
desire that all or any part of the
evidence given by them is to be
treated as confidential. It shall
however, be explained to the wit-
nesses that even though they might
desire their evidence to be treated
as confidentia] such evidence is
liable to be made available to the
Members of Parliament.”

You have worked for the last several
years with regard to this porblem of
the Taj. You have submitted us your
memorandum and a supplementary
memorandum also. I have seen this
book that you have sent me. Your
views are well known. Would you
like to say anything more besides
what you have stated in your memo-
randa?

PROF. RAO: I have been a specialist
in this field of Environmental Engi-
neering. I graduated from the Rice
University, Houstin, a city that is very
famous for a number af oll refinteries,
We have been studying the refilmery
pollution problems rights from that

time of 1862. In most of the deve-
loping countries, the problems of
pollution are increasing at least in

some areas on par with those of the
developed nations. When oil resour-
ces are found at a particular place
in land normally people try to take it
to the sea front in order to see that
the emissions which necessarily create
both air pollution and water pollution



will be taken care of by an environ-
ment. Where a large volume of pol-
lution water is .vailable in the seq,
while sorme marine life runsaway
from pollution, people are prevented
from suffering its adverse conséquen-
ces which ultimately lead to cancer of
the lung and intestinal trait. Even
the progeny will be affected. In case
of Mathura Refinery, we are trying to
pump oil over a distance of 1300 KM
from Bombay High aud are trying t»
locate a refinery in an area which does
not have enough environmenta] carry-
ing capacity. We are irying ic locate
it exactly at a locaticn which is most
unsuitable, because the wind direction
from the Mathura Reflnery is pre-
dominent only towards Agra. This
work on wind speeds and directions
was done over a pericd of two years
by Mr. Barkat Ali Khan during 1924-
25. He observed reading every hour
and found that particularly during
winter the wind blows only towards
Agra and was having a high velocity
with the result that emissions from
the refinery are just directed towards
the city of Agra to a very large ex-
tent. Now the recent study on travel
of pollution made in Europe as well
as in America indicates that the places
at long distances are more seriously
polluted than those close to the sour-
ces of pollution. I agree that a certain
degree of pollution can be tolerated in
the case of human beings; but in the
case of monuments like Taj Mahal
which is made of marble even traces
of sulphurdioxide cause damage.
Once sulphurdioxide or nitrogen-
dioxide or carbondioxide is released
into the atmosphere, by the industries,
the gas immediately affects human
beings and plants. Even as a gss, it
affects that monument only after it
hag been transformed into acids I went
deeper into this when I was in Stock-
holm for an international symposium.
1 discussed this problem of physio-
chemical fate of pollution with some
of the top international experts like
Prof. Bert Borlin, Paul Crutzen,
Ehrenberg and Ehran Berg and Dr.
Barry Commoner. Those people also
confirmed that pollutants it travels
beyond 15—20 miles downstream and
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become dangerously corrosine to
marble. Moreover, during winter, the
surface air movement over this regicn
forms part of the anti-cyclone lower
air movement over Northern India and
consequently tends to bring down the
pollutants along the Yamuna Valley to
Agra. If this Refinery is located about
30 miles down-wind of Agra, I would
have said that it js not dangerous to
the monuments, But due to its siting
upward of Taj and upstreom of
Yamuna, its liquid effluents let into
Yamuna cause water pollution of the
drinking water which on chlorination
will gradually kill millions of people in
Agra. 1 have published one book
entitled “Save Taj Mahal and people
of Braj. Mandal”. Tha IS suggested
that they had to conform to IAS 2480
standards for letting out the purified
effluents. The 1.O.C. plang to confirm
to these standards by spending a few
crores on waste treatment. ‘But there
are limitations even for the sophisti-
cated technology. If they are going
to spend al] these crores and still not
get the desired standards under I.S.
2296, T will not be satisfied because it
becomes a serioug public health hazard.
The pipeline of the refinery falls into
Yamuna river and that river is used
both for bathing and drinking water.
So many people use it. Hence even
the best water pollution control tech-
nology cannot ensurc the safety of the
river water as the river is not only
already seriously polluted but alsv its
dilution capacity dwindles very much
in summer. Past experience indicates
that most of the industrialists cannot
maintain even the 1.S. 2490 the stan-
dards—not even 5 per cent. Even
assuming that it is going to happen
in case of Mathura Refinery still it
will not satisfy the welfare and pub-
lic health aspect as discussed in the
book 1 have written.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is the question
of the health of tae people. Was it
known in 1972?

[ ]
PROF, RAO: Yes, it was known.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You have said—
by shifting the vefinery by 50 miles



down-stream of Agra it is possible to
prevent both loss to the monuments
and also loss to human beings.

You say 20 miles. 1t means, per-
haps, some of the structures that are
already put up at Mathura can be
"used as a part of general comgicx for
storage, marketing and so on. Could
you give a little more dctail on this
point?

PROF. RAO: Actually some of the
structureg can be puti to alternate uses
if the infructuous expenses were to be
fair enough.

The wind rose indicates that winds
from south east, do not affect the
monuments and people of Agra.

MR. CHAIRMAN: How will the
health hazard be obviated?

PROF. RAO: It is becausc of dilu-
tion -water provided by Gambhir and
the Chamba] rivers that the polluted
water of Yamuna gets more diluted.
In that way you do not expose |
million people to the carcinogenic
effects of pollution.

The villagers downstream of Etawah
being lesser in number, can be shifted
to alternative places 1f necessary.
Even Etawah can be supplied with
drinking water from the lower Ganges
Canals.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There will be
dtamatic result if we shiit it 50 miles
down-wind of Agra.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What about
the effect on fish?

PROF. RAO: The water pollution
will have some effect on fish. Cer-
tainly there will be more damaging
effect on monument; and a large
chunk of populatidh because of air
pollution., The drinking water supply
of Agra will also be affected besides
the adverse effects on agriculture
bird life, cattle and wild life of Braj.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Has this Dbeen
worked out in some detail? Can this
statement be substantiated?
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PROF. RAO: This can be inferred
from the data on pillution of Yamuna
water, already published by the
National Environmental Engineering
Research Institute, Nagpur in 1965-66.
In fact one of my papers on this sub-
ject, published in the Journal, Chemi-
cal] Age of India. August 1978 high
lights the impact of acid rains ena
short term concentrations of pollutants
on the flora and fauna of Braj Man-
dal.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Were .hese things
considered at the time of selecting
the site?

PROF. RAO: No, Sir.

Nobody with any common sense
could try to locate a highly polluting
factory at such a place which is going
to poison many people and kill them.
Perhaps, Hitler would not have ven-
tured to commit such a serious crime
even inadvertently against innocent
people.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Without ascribing
any motive, at that stuge the decision
was taken with inadequate apprecia-
tion of the environmental factors. We
do not want to get involved in poli-
tics. I am sorry I am obsessed with
the question of site. If it shifted to a
down-wind site close to Agra, it is to
minimise the effect both to the Taj
and Agra.

DR. RAFIQ ZAKARIA: After lis-
tening to Prof. Rao, we should be con-
vinced that the selection of site was
made on other factors,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Every positive
factor should be mobilised to take the
decision.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Etawah
\s 80 miles from Mathura. Hathras is
20 miles. If it i#8 moved to Hathras,
all these problems can be solved.

PROF. RAO: No Hathrag is to the
North of Agra, and the wind rose
indicates that we have to shift the
refinery to a less risky site towards
the South East of Agra. Hence
Ferozabad, Etawah region only is
suitable.



SHRI VASANT SATHE: Mr. Nayak,
you were talking of the need of hav-
ing a refinery for the north. Is it true
that for thig refinery you will be
bringing the crude by pipeline from
Bembay High and from Kandla if it
is imported crude? May I know
whether through pipelines you can
also transport other product; like
refineg oil etc.? If that is possihle,
the only problem for distribution will
be storage points. In the north you
<an have gtorage tanks from where
you can distribute to all areas, But
‘the refining could be done where the
crude is available nearby near the
seashore where effluent discharge,
wind direction, etc. could be taken
care of without in any way affecting
‘the interests of the consumerg in the
‘north.

SHRI NAYAK: Certain products
like diesel, petrol, kerosene, etc., can
be transported by a single pipeline
in a particular sequence._But for
furnace oil, we should have another
pipeline. Bitumen cannot be trans-
ported by pipeline at all. LPG is too
‘costly to be transported for long dis-
tances. This refinery is also to sup-
Ply heavy feedstock for two or three
fertiliser plants and these feedstock
canont be transported by pipeline.
“They are quite solid at normal tempe-
ratures,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: How much

furnace oil is required in the northern
region?

SHRI NAYAK: It is very consider-

able. The present estimate is we
propose to produce about 340,000
‘tonneg of furnace oil at Mathura
Tefinery.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Supposing,
for all the four products and the two
products, the feedstock for fertiliser,
furnace oil and LPG there was no
separate pipeline and it these things
are to be transported in a normal
way, what would be its effect on the
economy? Did you make any study
like that?
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SHRI NAYAK: I believe thig must
have been worked out.

SHR] VASANT SATHE: When the
Meathura refinery was envisaged, the
Bombay High had not come up. They
were thinking of importing the crude.
Even from economic point of view I
do not feel that there is really a
very valid case for having a refinery
at a distance of hundreds of miles
from where the raw material is.

MR. CHAIRMAN:. For thig if neces-
sary, we can call the officials of the
Ministry of Petroleum and Chemicais.

In your view, by shifting the re-
finery to Etawah which is 80 miles
away, this problem will be solved.

FROF. RAO: Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: According to
you, Mathura is the worst possible
site in the North from archaeological,
cultural, spiritual, material, health

and every other point of view.

PROF. RAO; Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Wil] you kindly
show us the slides now?

(At this stage, slides were shown to
the Members of the Committee).

PROF. RAO: I am now projecting
25 slides to- show how Taj Mahal

is going to be slowly but surely des-

‘troyed within 20 years due to pollu-

tion from Mathurg reflnery and its
multiplier effects.  Since seeing is
believing, I request you to kindly see
the pictures of centuries-old monu-
ments and statues of sand-stone and
marble which got blackened and dis-
integrated during the past 30 to 70
years due to air pollutants in the
industrial atmosphere of U.S.A. and
Europe. This first slide on Taj Mahal
shows that the North-West portion is
slightly discoloured due to air pollu-
tion from existing foundries and
thermal power plants of Agra. The
wind-roses based on 16, 366 hours of
observations during 1924-1925 indi-



cate that predominant winds from
North-West carry the pollution from
the refinery towards Agra in Winter,
towards Bharatpur in the season of
bird-migration, and towards Mathura
during pre-monsoon period. The
very high relative humidity, the
channelling effect; in valleys, the ex-
weme temperature fluctuations, and
the frequent atmospheric inversions
during winter and the dust-stoyms in
summer make thig site for the re-
finery as the worst possible choice,
particularly when the crude is being
pumped from a distance of 1300 kilo-
metres from Bombay.

This UNEP poster of 1978 on stone-
cancer to the granite pillar, cleopatras
‘Needle’ indicates that in spite of their
best air pollution control technology
even the Americans failed to prevent
disfigurement of the Western face of
the monument. This pillay which
was in tact for 3500 years in Egypt,
had to yield during the last 70 years
to air pollution of New York. This
slide on decay of Greek monuments
shows that the wonderful marble
works of art which stood the wrath
of nature for 2400 years became
blackened and disintegrated during
the last 30 years due o air pollution
from industrial developments around
Athens since the second World War.
The other slides show the acceleratcd
decay of monuments at Cologne,
Venice, Rhur and Stockholm due to
air pollution and the consequential
corrosivenesss of the local environ-
ment. If the present site for the
refinery is not shifted from the up-
wind direction, Taj Mahal will be
discoloured and disfigured within 20
to 30 years. Recent theories state
that the pollution from the refinery
40 Km. upwind of Agra will be more
harmful to the monuments than the
pollution from the local sources.

It is a pity that the Export Com-
mittee on Mathura Refinery is mis-
leading the Government and the
Public on the impact of pollution
from the refinery on Taj and its en-
virons. I am sorry to say that the
warnings of eminent conservation
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and environmental specialists on this
Committee have been brushed aside
by the non-environmental lists on
this Committee. I have already
warned that beside the sghort-term
high levels of pollutants even non-
suiphurous guses like oxides of car-
bon and nitrogen and aerosols from
the refinery and its multiplier effects
damage the monuments.

Coming to water pollution prob-
lem as the Yamuna river does not
have much flow during the non-rainy
seasons, it gets seriously polluted
even with the industrial and domes-
tic wastes discharged at Delhi and
Mathura. Hence, the Yamuna river
cannot be expected to receive any
extra load of pollution from the
Mathura reflnery. If the waters of
Yamuna are diverted for domestic and
industrial uses in it; upper reaches in
the near future, the situation becomes
much worse. Since the waters of
Kitham lake which are used for sup-
plementing the low summer flows of
Yamuna are going to be diverted for
the Reflnery, the Agra water supply
is bound to be seriously affected,
with heavy chlorination, the munici-
pal water supply is bound to become
carcinogenic for a million people of
Agra. Besides the present generation
even future generations will also be
affected.

Even at its seventh meeting, this
committee did not consider such
serious water pollution problems due
to the refinery and its multiplier
effects. Without waiting for the
TECNESCO report and in the absence
of the concerned environmental spe-
cialists, the Committee gave hasty
opinion on 1-5-1976 that there is no
need to shift the site for the reflnery
based on inadequate and unreliable
data. While the Petroleum Minister
told Rajya Sabha on 28-7-1977 that if
the Committee gives an opinion that
there will be a threat to monuments,
he will get the problem re-examined
by the Union Cabinet. But the Com-
mittee refused to consider the issue
when I raised it on 23-11-77, stating
that the issue does not lle within its



purview. Thus there i; a lot of con-
fusion about the role of this Commit-
tee. It is shocking to find that the
Committee did not enclose the notes
of warnings about the pollution threat
to Taj submitted by eminent experts
like Dr. G. Torraca, Dr. B. B. Sun-
dareran, Mr. R. Sen Gupta and Prof.
J. M. Dave (the latter three were
members of the Committee) in their
report tabled before Parliament on
14-8-1978. Even the reply of
TECNECO exp>rts dated 14-11-1977 ‘o
the points raised by Dr. G. Torraca
was not enclosed.

If we fai] to examine the problem
in its true perspective to save the
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monuments, the people and eco-sys-
tems of Braj Mandal, posterity will
never forgive the present generation
and particularly those in power for
all these errors of omission gnd
commission. I, therefore, strongly urge
the members of Parliament and the
Government to act under article 49
of the Constitution to save our inno-
cent people and the priceless culturai
heritage which we hold in trust not
only for our progeny but for all man-
kind.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very
much.

(The Committee then adjourned)
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Prof. B. B. Sundaresan, Director, National Environmental Engineering

Research Institutes, Nagpur.

(The witness was called in and he took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Prof. Sundaresan,
before we start the evidence, in ac-
cordance with the provisions contained
in Direction 58 of the ‘Directions by
the Speaker’, I must make it clear
that your evidence wil] be treated as
public and is liable to be published
unless, of course, you specifically
desire that all or any part of the
evidence is to be treated as confiden-
tial; even in that event, the Members
of Parliament will, abviously, have
access to it.

You are the Director of the National
Environmenta] Engineering Research
Institute, Nagpur. I must apologize
for not having visited it personally
although I have come to Nagpur
twice.

We have received your memoran-
dum. You have given us an admirab-
ly briet and concrete set of sugges-
tions for changes in the Bill. Is there
anything that you would like to say,
before we start asking specific ques-
tions, by way of further elaboration
or elucidation of what you have said
in your memorandum?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: I have
given my points in the statement. If
you want, I can elaborate on them.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your first point
is about definition.

PROF. SUNDARESAN: The defini-
tion that is given in the Bill does not
cover the various aspects.

MR. CHAIRMAN.: The deflnition is
very important. This is 2(b). Here
you have suggested that the definition
of air pollution be modified as:

“Air pollution means the pre-
sence of contaminants in the air in
concentrations that prevent the
ncrmal dispersive ability of the
air and that interfere directly or
indirectly with man’s health, safety
or comfort or with thg Tul] use and
enjoyment of his property.”

What would be the advantage of this
expanded deflnition?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: When we
think in terms of the damaging effects
of pollution, it hgs to encompass the
entire environment! if has to encom-
pass the health, safety, comfort and
full use and enjoyment of his proper-
ty.

MR. CHAIRMAN: What do you
mean by ‘enjoyment of the property'?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: Suppose
there is an industrial unit located in »
an area adjoining, maybs, a citrus
garden. The release of pollutants, to
a large extent, may damage the crops.



So, this is a very specific instance of
pollution preventing him from the
enjoyment of his proptrty. Similarly,
jn an urban atmosphere, if an elec-
tronic -industry is located adjoining
an airport, where a lot of noise is
made, then it will definitely impair
not only the quality of the air but
also even the gadgets that are housed
which means the proper enjoyment
of the property.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Then ani-
mals and birds also are affected.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It does exclude
birds, it does exclude wild life, it in-
cludes only human life,

partly in
property. I

Perhaps we can put it
the enjoyment of the
take that point.

Our definition should be such that
it is possible that there may be some
places where human habitation may
be somewhat small, but may be other
important aspects are involved. Take
the Rajasthan desert. Because people
are not there, it does not mean that
it can be polluted with immunity, for
it also represents a certain habitat. I
think that we consider the definition.
Your points are well taken but we
may have to go beyond that.

While we talk gbout this, do you
have any views whether this work
should be entrusted to the Water
Pollution Controj Board or we should
set up an independent Board? If you
have any views on that, you may
give them. That is a matter to which
We are now giving a good deal of at-
tention.

PROF. SUNDARESAN: If you look
at the entire spectrum of activities
involved in the environment pollution
control, we have started late in 1974
with the establishment of the Water
Pollution Control Board and during
the last 3-4 years both at the Central
fand at the State leve] considerable
amount of spade work has been done
to control environmental pollution
with reference to water. Now when
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we iook at the total environment,
many times we meet with situations
where controlling air pollution will
ultimately lead to water pollution. So
there will be an interplay and inter-
action between the control measures
taken for preventing air pollution
and water pollution. This is a point
which should be recognised and to
that extent I fee] at the present tim-
it is more prudent to have air pollu-

" tion attached to Water Pollution Con-

tro! Boards as of now. Maybe because
of three reasons: (1) Sufficient spade
work has been done by the Water
Pollution Control Board in establish-
ing the infra-structure as wel] as
laboratories. (2) The analytical proce-
dures as well as the laboratories that
are to be set up are more or less the
same and you will find that you will
be unnecessarily  duplicating the
efforts which wil] cost the exchequer
in having two sets of arrangements.
Naturally there will be some amount
of advantage if we have both of them
together. - (3) If there are two sepa-
rate Boards, one for Air and another
for Water, we may reach situations
later on where from the point of
control one of the gadgets or equip-
ments suggested for control of air
pollution from an industry may cause
water pollution. For instance, take a
nitric acid manufacturing plant, where
water may be useq for scrubbing the
oxide of nitrogen and this may come
out as water pollution. This type of
co-ordination may be missing if again
another independent agency is to be
established.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This ig a very
interesting point. What you are say-
ing iz that measires to control air
pollution may result in an Increase in
water pollution.

PROF. SUNDARESAN: Yes,

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is a new
idea for me. How do you fight air
pcllution? By diluting it in water
and water thereby gets polluted. Can
it in fact arise?



PROF. SUNDARESAN: It can
arise. Unless at the stage of provid-
ing the control system, a comprehen-
sive arrangement or system is thought
of both for air and water, particular-
ly in large scale industries this
danger is there. It may not be there
so much in small scale and cottage

industries.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Even if we pro-
vide for an independent Board, the
laboratory facilities may be common.
It may not be necessary to duplicate
latoratory facilities. That is not so
much the point. But this conflict of
interests, as you say, may act occa-
sionally. But the view that has been
placed before us iz that the Water
Poiliution Controj Boards, functioning
a; they are under the State Govern-
ments and under a different set up
and not getting the necessary finan-
cial and technical inputs may not be
a proper agency for tackling air
pollution problems and we would
have lost an opportunity to set up a
more dynamic new organization. You
don't think this is a valid point?

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Will it
not be possible to have one eminent
expert both in air pollution amd
water pollution as the common Chair-
man of both the bodies?

PROF. SUNDARESAN; That type
of provision is al] right. The various
programmes that are organized take
into consideration not only water
pollution but also air pollution. In
fact most of the programmes, if you
look at the administrator’s level or
even at the specialist level, does not

preclude air pollution as a separate
entjty. particularly looking at our
entire environment in toto. Again

this approach of air and water pollu-
tion being considereq separately, to
my mind, is conflicting because we
are looking at the total environment.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We started off
with this jdea of Water Pollution and
Air Pollution Control Boards. Why
cannot we have a joint Environmental
Pollution Control Board so that we
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take the totality? 'l'nat was a very
good concept theoretically, but we
run into the following difficulties.
Water Pollution Control Board 1s
based under Art. 252 of the Consti-
tution which means the State Gov-
ernments have to ratify it and they
have to pass resolutions whereas this
law is now going to be based under
Art. 253 which entitles the Govern-
ment of India to act on its own.
There was a fear expressed that if
we get involved in this totality we
may run into certain constitutional
and legal problemsg which would
deadlock the whole exercise, My
original thinking was: why can’t we
replace both these by a single envi-
ronmental control Board?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: Ultimately
that would be the objective but at
the present point of time where
something has to be done urgently to
contain and contro] the pollution—
particularly the seriousness of the
situation is such that water pollution
has to be attended to immediately.
That is being done . . .

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is it being done
effectively?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: To a large
extent I would say yes, having gone
through the various State Boards and
being involved in some of their pro-
grammes. I would not say it has
been 100 per cent successful. What I
would concede on this point is that
there are areas or there are States
which have done a commendable job
in containing or at least controlling
pollution. For instance, take the
State of Kerala where the awareness
which was not there before on the
part of the industries is very much
there now and this is reflected in the
number of organizations and indus-
tries both of public and private sector
approaching not only the Universities
butl also the research institutions to
suggest to them suitable control mea-
sures or technology. So when the '
Boards are insisting on industries to
provide control measures, the only
alternative for them is to come to



* jnstitutions such as ours and ihe
number of inquiries and the volume
of work that is involved in our insti-
tutiuns at the present moment is a
refiection of the awarenesg as well as
an indication that the Boards are
doing a good job, if not an entirely
satisfactory job.

MR. CHAIRMAN: §Sp it is your
considerel opinion that this work
should be given to the Water Pollu-
tion Boards?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: Yes.

DR. ZAKARIA: I do not think it
will be possible for us to have a
common Boarq because the Water
Pollution Boards have been formed
under the State _Acts. All that we can
do is that we ctan say that the Cen-
tral Governmem,may designate a
particular body for the purpose of
carrying out the air pollution ard
entrust that work to the water pollu-
ticn board but I do not think in this
legislation it will be possible for us

A to in any way amend either the pro-

visione of the State Acts or arm the
Water Pollution Boards with greater
puwers.

MR. CHAIRMAN: We will discuss
it separately. The next witness is
Chairman of the Water Pollution
Board.

AN HON'BLE MEMBER: A fear
has been expressed by a witness who
has appeared before the Committee
earlier that Water Pollution Boards
have, by and large, failed to evolve
effective methods.

PROF. SUNDARESAN: The weak-
nesg does not lie in the formation of
the boards. It lies squarely on the
3et of arrangements in a particular
State. But, Sir, when we are think-
ing of legislation we have to be
interested in the total concept. The
concept being that even though the
constitution of the boards has not
delivered the goods in 10 States yet
we have to keep in mind that in
hose 10 States it has achieved the
purpose of focussing attention and in
5 States we have made some achieve-

ments.

as

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Instead of
two boards whether it wil] be pos-
sible to have eight-nine persons wlo

have knowledge both in air and
water pollution to implement this
Act?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: From the
point of view of membership of the
board it may not be possible to con-
ceive of al] the members to have the
expertise but the experts and the
professionals who are involved in the
area of environmental science will be
exposed to all the three areas.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: A suggestion has been made
before the Committee that there
should be a common Board with one
Chairman and under him two bran-
ches with two executives working
under him so that expertise i; there
and at the same time there is co-
ordination and the number also is
limited with the representation of
technical expertise and those who
would be responsible for the imple-
mentation side of it. The implemen-
ting authority is not board itself.
What ig your reaction to this sug-
gestion because it will bring coordi-
nation as well as specialisation,

PROF. SUNDARESAN: I agree
withi thig suggestion. In the common
board there will have to be experts
who are more knowledgeable in the
area of air and water.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In addition to
giving powers to the existing water
conirol boards one can say that each
btoarg will have two sections—air
contro} section and water control sec-
tion—and thereby you keep the
structure of the single board and yet
you ensure about air pollution. But
the powers of the water pollution
control board are limited under that
Act and we propose giving more
powers for air pollution control tn
the same board. Will that not result
in some confusion unless we specify
that each water pollution control
board will have a special section
dealing with air pollution control



PROF, SUNDARESAN: Sir I can-
not comment on this as it is more of
a legal problem.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: When we went on tour we
found in one of the Stateg the people
who are put in charge were people
frcm CPWD. They are not really ex-
perts in this aspect of pollution. Do
you think it will be necessary to
specify in the Act that the officials
who are put there should be those
who are technically qualified in the
field?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: That is the
exact point. ”

PROF. BHATTACHARJEE: In the
matter of water pollution a person
with expertise in public health
engineering is required whereas 1n
the matter of air pollution a person
with qualifications in chemica)] engine-
ering and physical TChemistry is re-
quired. How to integrate these two?

PROF. SUNDARESAN: It is cor-
rectly pointed out that one of the
reasons gs to why some of the water
pellution control boards™ are ineffec-
tive is that they are not being man-
ned by the proper expertise. Either
CPWD or people unconn®cted with
professional expertise manage the
bvards which has resulted in impro-
per appreciation of the problem it-
self. Sometimes the Chairman is

appointed on part-time basis.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: Do you think it shoulg be
specified in the Act with regard to
the Chai man that he will be full-
time and also the people should be
qualified.

PROF. SUNDARESAN; Yes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Sp my point is
it we give it to the existing water
pollution control boards and they do
not have the expertise then how will
we ensure its implementation.

PROF. SUNDARESAN:
taking advantage of the

Even by
existing
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wauter pollution control boards consti-
tution the professionals and the
technical experts could be appointed
as Chairman gnd Secretary. It can
be done even now.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do we have
thirty people in India who are com-
petent to head these bodies?

DR. ZAKARIA: It will be difficult
to find thirty people with requisite
qualifications. Mr, Xhare was the
Chiet Engineer and Secretary of the
Water Pollution Board before joiniug
the Government of India. It is very
difficult to get competent and techni-
cally qualified people. In Bombay
we struggled hard. In regard to air
pollution you will face still greater
difficulty. We took the personnel
from CPWD because nobody was
available.

PROF. BHATTACHARJEE: I
would like to know from the witness
whether the full-time Chairman of
the Water Pollution Control Board
should be an expert in public health
engineering or chemical engineer
with expertise in physica] chemistry
as he has to serve for air pollution
contirol also?

DR. SUNDARESAN: Having been
connected with the subjert for about
25 years, my experience is that it is
the environmental engineer who can
do the job. He has to have the
necessary background starting from
the basic disciplines of civil engineer.
ing or chemical engineerings, He has
to be sufficiently experienced and
trained. Mere chemical engineer
will not do the job.

MR. CHAIRMAN: For Chairman of
the Board you need somebody of re.
quisite seniority and ctature whose
word carries weight, To expect that
you will get full time Chairman cf
that seniority as also specialisation is
impossible because the specialisation
is only five years® old,

Now, what is the position in re-
gard to the laboratories in the Water
Pollution Control Boards and what do

]



you 'envisaae should be done for this
Board?

DR. SNDERESAN: At present
most of the Water Pollution Control
Boards have established their own
laboratories or are in that process.
Particularly in the context of the air
pollution, both collection of samples
as ‘well as analysis has to be done
the region. The laboratories at the
State level should be sufficiently
strong as well as equipped so that
they produce the results immediately
as well as feed it back immediately
for the Board rather than leave this
for the Central Board of a Central
laboratory. Even for the research
institute with headquartars at Nagpur,
we have to have nine zonal labora-
tories in nine different states and
even with that we are not completely
able to meet the problems as well as
feed back to the States,

MR. CHATRMAN: Are these nine
laboratories capable of doing this work
with slight additional input?

DR. SUNDERESAN: They can ©
this job with slight additional input,
but there will be conflict of interest
in course of time. The designs for
pollution control are not readily avail-
able and most of the public and pri-
vate sector undertakings are approa.
ching the Institute for giving them
suitable designs for control system,
This is what we are doing. If we have
to undertake the analytical work for
air pollution on behalf ¢f the Board
as also be involved in the consultancy
services to the public and private
sector, there will be conflict of inte-
rest,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you sugges-
ting that entirely a new get of labo-
ratories will have to be set up for
this purpose? '

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: The exist-
ing laboratories with the medical col-
leges can be used for this purpose.

DR. SUNDERESAN: Quite a num-
ber of engineering colleges, not the
the medical colleges have such
laboratories.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Would the labo-
ratories of the regional engineering
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colleges and the five 1ITs meet
requirements?

DR. SUNDERESAN: That would at
least meet the requirements partly.
The Water Pollution Coatirol Board
have their own laboratorias in most
of the States, They can be asked to
provide for these facilitiag also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The point is
whether the laboratories attached to
the Water Pollution Control Board
IITs and these regional colleges will
be able to provide the necessary in-
frastructure to ensure effective imple-
mentation of this Act.

DR. SUNDERESAN: Yes, they can
undertake this job effectively,

MR, CHAIRMAN: With regard to
thg Question of sampling, vou have
said that it is not possible to divide
air samples into two parts, which
means you should have two samples
at the same time but somebody said
that we could bilurcate the sample.

DR. SUNDERESAN: It would im-
pair the quality.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you suggest
that parallel samples should be taken.
Is there a standard procedurs Iaid
down for collecting samples and ane.
lysis them?

DR. SUNDERESAN: At least wo
have in our laboratory, The ISI is
right now working on this and within
a few months they may prescribe a
standard procdure for :his.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, I think
water pollution standards are laid
down.

DR. SUNDERESAN: Yes, Sir.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But for air pol-
lution, standards were not laid down.

the

SHRI SUNDERESAN: There are
standards laid down in other count-
ries. But in our country there is no
standard laid down for this. We need
not go in .for such a highly sophisti-
cated method of sampling and stan-
dardisation which are there in the de-
veloped countries, Whatever methods
that we are adopting is because we
are inicrested in scientific analysis



and scientific data, So we have stan-
uardisation procedure in our own
Institute, Wg being the Members of
the 1.S.1. are inuicating the suitable
modi.icationg which the entire country
can adopt. Till such time 1S.I. gives
tne standards for sampling and ana-
lysis, we have to take .t that we do
not have anything laid down for this
purpose. On further reference, it has
been found that ISI has biought out
a few standards for air sam_...ng and
analysis.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: For the
winter season you have different
standards.

SHRI SUNDERESAN: The quality
of pollusion will vary depending on
the seasons,

SHR] TRILOKI SINGH: I am talk-

ing of the standards. Will there ‘be
difference in standards in different
seasons?

SHRI SUNDERESAN: I do not

think the pollution standard will
vary, But the pollution will vary by
seasons, I think you are referring to
the interpretation part, particularly
when the air pollution is in the at-
mosphere it will definitzly vary de-
pending upon the meteorological vosi-
tion which will change from season to
season,

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Then there
will have to be different standards so
far ag air pollution is concerned.

SHRI SUNDERESAN: Here I think
there are two standards required,
One is efAuent standard that is being
released by the industry into the ut-
mosphere through the slack which
has to meet certain requirements. The
other is ambient air control standards.
That is, un to what level a particular
concentration can go. If you talk
about sulpher dioxide in a particular
environment that will vary from sea-
son to season. But for standards we
always go in by a figure at the high.
est point.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Have you seen
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the report of the NEERI given by an
expert doctor?

SHRI SUNDERESAN: It is a pic.
neer institution of its kind. The point
is; is there not any scope for many
other such_institutions in the country?
The nature of problems that are deve-
loping the process of envirenment, par-
ticularly industrialisation in our coun-
try is such that one lahoratory will
not be able to solve the problem of
this country. So, even as of now, the
headquarters laboratory at Nagpur
has to deal with air, water as well as
solid waste and when we talk aboul,
here again the question of sewage as
well as industrial waste comes in.
There are a number of industries that
are coming up and the effluent that
they release is increasing enormousiy.
It means technologically we find that
evan in the case of industrial effluzn.
ces that are being released, we have a
solution for a part of industrial efflu.
ents that are released. For the remain-
ing nart, we do not have a soluticn,
For that, we have to evolve such a
technology in our own ccuntry. Tak-
ing all these things into consideration,
it is time that we had additional faci-
lities and additional regiona] labora-
tories which would go into this. When
it was established in 1859 it was
thought that one laboratory was su.
ficient. Now the problems have
mounted to such an extent that one
laboratory will not be sufficent to
deal with the problem. That js why
we are trying to strengthen our 9
zonal laboratories by way of getting
financial allocation for this purpose.
But ultimately all these laboratories
have to emerge into 9 independent
institutes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The question of
environmental education is very much
in the air. One is the geners] intro-
duction of education of envircnment-
al values into the educalional system
so that the younger generation can
know the problem. Otherwise they
will never be able to solve it. The
other is th~ technical =ducation in en-
vironmental engineering, Do you
think that the facilities a1 present in
our Universities and advancei cen.



tres of learning are adequate and if
not what is mechanism whereby its
adequacy can be made up?

SHRI SUNDERESAN: I will take
up the second question first. We have
com: up to situations where the va-
rious disciplines particularly civil)
chemical, mechanical, electrical engi-
neers and engineers who are coming
out of the institutions are not fully
exposed to the ideas or concep! of en-
vironment except that after coming
out and working in various industrices,
probably they are exposed. To thst
extent, we find many persons interest.
ed in the design of thermal power
stations or persons involved in the
design of fertiliser planis were not
fully appreciative of the fact that this
can do considerable damage to the
air o1 water. So, only now this is
emerging to the extent that the intro-
duction of environmental pollution as
one of the subjects at the wunder-
graduate level is under consideration,
All engineers and professionals who
are involved in industrial design as
well as process and operation should
be exposed to the concept of environ-
ment pollution if not completely, at
least the dangers that are involved in
pollution. The engineering colleges and
universities with proper support from
the C.S.I.LR. or the University Grants
Commission should include this sub-
ject in the curriculum. At the schcol
level as well as the younger level
this is very clearly emerging that
this is to be introduced at the younger
generation level, Unless we do that,
1 think we will be repzating the
same mistake for some mor= genera-
tion,

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Of late there was a dis-
cussion regarding Higher Secondary
curricula where there was a chapter
on the subject of pollution and there
was a suggestion that it should be
dropped because there were strong
pleas becauge this so called bogey of
pollution is rather devised to turn the
mind of the young students against
nature. Ultimately that has been foil-
ed and in the syllabus of the Higher
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Secondary Class the pollution chapter
has been repealed. It seems that there
are two basic values, One is about the
inculcation of environmental values.
That should be there in the general
education in primary classes. Of
course our old concept .says that
everything around us i3 sacred—
forests, trees, ocean etc. Sacred, not
in any roligious sense, but in the
sense that they are essential for hu.
man existence, Then, as you go a
little higher to the under.graduate
education, some of the more specific
dangers of environmen'a]l pollution
etc. can be included. Later, the actual
specilization can be taken up. But the
point should be mentioned because we
should consider making a general re-
commeniation in this regard—not in
this Bill. 4

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: If that kind of education had
been there the problem of Mathura
Refinery would not have been there.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Initially
you said that citrus hues had been
affected, Have you heard that mango
fruit ijs very much sensitive to this?

PROF, SUNDERESAN: 1 gave it as
an example. In fact, all fruit-bearing
trees will be affected, if tliey are ex.
posed to pollution like sulphur diox-
ide. They will be retarded in their
growth, Any crop, for that matter,
will be affected. It has been studicd
on wheat. On mangoes it has not been
done. Euvironmental engineering, as
a profession, has emerged much faster
than what we had anticipated.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: May be you undertake
consultancy work, Were the results of
the investigation conducted by you,

published?

PROF SUNDERESAN: Here we £0
by the guidelines provided by CSIR,
particularly when it is 0a a contrac.
tual basis, for undertaking consultan-
cy projects, both for the public sec-
tor and private undertakings, These
reports are treated as confidential, At
the same time, if it is required by



éovemment, it is given. 1t is not open
to the public.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
ChauusE: i1 you feel that jt is in
tne wider interests of the public, do
you have any authority to make it
public? NE£RI is a scientific body. I
don't thiax these reports should be
kept as classified documents,

PROF. SUNDERESAN: We do pub-
lisn them in professional journals,

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think we can
now call Dr, Nilay Chaudhury; ®Hut
may I request you to stay on, i you
are not very busy? Probably there
may be some cross.references needed.

(The Witness then withdrew)

Il. Dr. Nilay Chaudhury, Chairman,
Centra] Board for revention and
Conuwol of Water Pottuuen, New
De hi.

[ %

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat)

MR, CHAIRMAN: Before we pro-
ceed I may draw your attention to
Direction 58 of the Directions of the
Speaker which reads as follows;

*“56. Where witnesses appear before
a Committee to give ecvidence, the
Cheairman shall make it clear to the
witnesses that their evidence shall be
ireated as public and is liable to be
published, unless they specifically de-
sire that all or any part of the evi-
dence given by them is to be treated
as confidential. It shall however, be
explained to the witnesses that even
though they might desire their evi-
dence to be treated as confidentinl
such evidence is liable to be made
available to the Members of Parlia.
ment.” Dr. Chaudhury is really a
critical witness because he presided
over the Board of the previous Act.
The fact that he happened to preside
over the Board will not in any way
prevent him in giving his advice to us
as to whether there shouid be a se-
parate Board. I must say that I am
not still clear i»= my mnpd whether
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we have an entireiy new sct up for
air pollution or whether we snould
give 1t to the Board, There is
also a repurt oy tae expert com-
mittee of the Government of India
which I hope all of you have got. It is
a very important report. This expert
commuittece was set up by the Minis-
try oi Works and Housing. Dr. Chan.
dhury was also a member of that com-
mittee. You have not given any sepa-
rate memorandum, Would you like to
give us your general views before we
start asking questions?

DR, CHAUDHURY: Parliamenta-
rians do go to different places and see
for themselves the problems of pol-
lution and also at least get some ac-
quintance with the functioning of
the various Boards. So, I would pre-
sume that they have received some
amount of first hand information how
the Boards are functioning at various
ievels, I would briefly mention on the
structure of it and try to make a
comparative evaluation about the
functioning of the Board ag a result of
structyral impact.’

We have 22 States. Out oI 22 States,
filve are in the northeastern region
which are very small sized. Obviously,
the problem of pollution in regard to
particularly water has not emerged.
They are Karnataka, Tripura, Megha-
laya, Manipur and Nagaland. If these
five States are taken away ' we are
left with 17 States..Orissa, Tamilnadu
have not taken to Central Act In
Orissa, there is an ¢ld act which taey
call River Act. In Maharashtra, which
is of course a pioneering State, had
already introduced the Water Pollu-
tion Control Act much hefore the
Central Act came in. If we tuke away
these three States also, then we are
left with 14 States, They have taken
to Central Act. There are some States
where the Chairman is an adminis-
trative person; and then he is helped
by the Secretary who is reasonably a
senior man; may be a Chief Engineer.
For example, in Andhra Pradesh, the
Chairman is an administrative person,
but the Secretary is always either the
Chief Engineer or the next to the



Chief Engineer, that is, Deputy Chiet
Engineer of the Engineering Depart.
ment. There is anothr case where the
Chairman is an administrative person
but followed by a very Junior Execu-
tive Engineer or may be the Superin-
tending Engineer. Such cases are in
Bihar, UP and Jammu and Kashmir.,
Then we have the other cases where
the Senior Chief Enginser of the State
is the Chairman and he is assisted by
the Secretary who is also either &
Senior Executive Engineer or the
Superintending Engineer, Such situa-
tions are in Punjab, Gujarat, Rajas-
than, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka,
Kerala Assam and iVest Bengal.
There is another type wanere the Chief
Engineer—may be from the allied
section—is the Chairman— may bhe
the Irrigation or the Public Wcrks
Department—who is assisted by the
Secretary. He is the Senior Executive
or may be the Executive Engineer.
An example is Haryana and Himachal
Pradesh. In shert, there are four types
of set ups and I would say without
any inhibition that the best perfor.
mances are from those States where
the Chairman is also from the Public
Works & Engineering Department
and is assisted by a Senior either

Executive Engineer or the Superin-
tending Engineer,
Now I would like 10 draw your

attention towards the weak States
like Bihar, U.P. and J. & K. Here the
Chairman could not really attend to
the programme of the water pollution
control Boards, because of their pre.
occupation in other places. I would
make a little exception of J & K be-
cause their problem is not that
serious. In regard to many other as-
pects like industrial pollution and
things like that, in the case of Sri.
nagar and J & K cities, because of so
much pollution there, may be critical,
there is a relevant department like
the Public Health and Engineering
Department which can Jook after the
matter, if there is no Water Pollution
Control Board.

Now we can come to the discussion
whether we should have a sort of
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sepprate system, a uniform system
for this purpose. There is a think-
ing here whether the two Boards are
necessary because one is constituted
under the State subject and the other
is constituted under the concurrent
subject. Now the question comes if
you provide with one single board,
because here Board meang only those
17 members, but the Board is not the
administrative instrument of the
organisation ag each Board will have
to have its administrative organisa-
tion. That means there would be
Technical Section, Scientific Section
who will be organising the program-
me of the Board. If this Board whe-
ther it is constituted as Air pollution
or water pollution, so long as you
keep it as one, its functions will be
divided between the Air Wing and
the Water Wing. As such technijcal-
ly there should not be any conflict.
Now the question comes can it be
legally done or not? On this point I
cannot say anything because it will
have to be seen through.

If we say that the functioning of
the control of water and air should
be managed by one single organisa-
tion and if that is scientifically and
technically the best approach, then I
think our thinking should be to orga-
nise it through one single organisa-
tion. I think. Dr. Sunderesan has
made one point clear—by controlling
it from Air, it may be transferred to
water.

I am citing another example. Am-
monia or Urea which comes out of
the fertilizer plant, urea can be con-
verted into ammonia. You have two
techniques. Either you can treat it,
keeping it in water and meaking it
free or by stripping it in the air. In
any such situation we should try to
hit the optimal solution. The indus-
try will try to get the solution which
satisfies the plannerg and at the same
time at a minimum cost from his
pocket. This kind of optimal solu-
tion approach can be given provided
the scientific and the engineering
organisation work in co-ordination.



Although there are areas where spe-
cialisation ig necessary, to be a sge—
cialist in Air area or to be a specia-
list in water area, all these people
emerge from the same base-scientific
discipine or engineering discipline.
That means basically they are Chemi-
cal Engineers or Civil Engineers.
They are oriented either in water or
air. This is the way we emerge. If
we accept that scientifically and
technically it ig possible, how to uti-
lise the services of one single board.
After all the Board functions. It is
a sort of a guide.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You yourself
said—all the States have not accept-
ed the Water Pollution Act because
it ig open to the States to have their
own .Acts. It means—those States
which have ot accepted the Act,
they will have to come directly under
the control of Air Pollution Act.
They will have to have a separate
Board,

DR. CHAUDHURY: We can per-
suade the States to accept the Cen-
tral Act on water pollution,

MR. CHAIRMAN: They will have
to accept this because it ig being
passed in the Concurrent List.

Thos=> States which have not accept-
ed it, there you will have Water Pol-
lution Board.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI XRISH-
NAN: Why is the delay taking place
in Tamil-aadu.

DR, CHAUDHURY: Probably it is
not within my competence, Btu
since information lies with me I am
just bringing to your notice. Tamil-
nadu had been thinkiag that they
will go in for a comprehensive legis-
lation. ..

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: And gend the draft to the
Centra’ Government also.

DR. CHAUDHURY: That iz not
know"1 to me.

MR, CHATRMAN: You feel that

by giving this air pollution work to
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the Water Control Board, the
not suffer.

work

You yourself said that the Water
Pollution Boards fall into several
categories, The work is most satis-
factory where you have a full tima
Chairman. We have to provide in
this Act that there will be a full time
Chairman for the Air Pollution Board.

If you come to the Water Pollu-
tion Board or to decide whether to
have a full time Chairman, it lies
with the State and hot with the Cen-
tre to decide. Are we not givii
them the option?

DR, CHAUDHURY: I gm referring
to Water Pollution Act 1974 amend-
ment. It did not have the scope for
any part time Chairm&l. In spite of
that there was no full time Chairman
in some of the States.

The scope of fqr a part time Chair-
man was introduced because the gmall
sized States—Tripura, Meghalaya, etc.,
were finding it really difficult to pro-
vide a man because he hag either to
come from Scientific side or Public
Works Department in order to cater
their requirements. This part time
work was introduced in the amend-
ment of the Water Pollutioa Act. But
the intention is not for big sized
States where the problemg are size-
able, The intention is to cater to the
requirements of the small sized
States. We can cite example of J. &
K Himachal Pradesh, where the pro-
blem jg not acute and they ca\1 man-
age with a part time man.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Zakaria has
said that for both Air and Water it
is difficult to get persons with the
requisite knowledge. Is that an im-
portant consideration?

DR. CHAUDHURY: Man hag to
be equipped with requisite know-
ledge. For instarice you hearq yester-
day Prof. Dave, Prof Shivaji Rao.
All of us emerge from the Civil En-
gineering discipline. We are engi-
neers "0t acquainfed with Air pollu-



tion system. With experience we get
ourselveg equipped with air pollution
aspect. I think we will have to train
ourselves, to make ourselves available
botn for Air and Water. But even for
that matter the Chairma, need not
be fully versatile in all subjects of
which he hag been given the charge.

DR, RATIQ ZAKARIA: When you
said ‘nodding acquintance’ that itself
betrays the .act that the expertise
that ig expected may not be there.
Ater gll, you will be dealing with in-
dustrial giants who would come for-
ward with all sorts of explanations
saying it is m10t causing any pollution.
So you should have a person who
will be abie to meet the challenge
that will come from the pollutors.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This being a
new discipline, a great deal of ex-
pertisc will have to be developed, but
we cannot wait till then.

DR, RAFIQ ZAKARIA: We should
have an institute along with it to
train people, Those whom we are
able to appoint also will have to be
reorietited properly into the new
techniques, So, when you gre putting
the qua'ifications, you will have to be
careful,

DR. CHAUDHURY: I think section
11 takes care of that. I can borrow
expertise availab'z in the country or
even from other countries and agen-
cie; like WHO to counter the chal-
lenge posed by any giant industry.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Yesteray
we heard Dr. Dave and Dr. Shivaji
Rao, both of whom said that air pollu-
tion ig of a differént nature. While
water pollution 75 restrictei to the
river and river-bed, air pollution tra-
vels over a much larger area and can-
ot be gtrictly localised. Therefore,
it hg; different teclinological dimen-
siong and the expertise for containing
air pollution would also be of a
different kind. Both of them were at
paing to tell us that the board for air
pollutfon should be separate, with a

Chairman and probably Sgcretary
who would have adequate knowledge
of this technology ... What is your
reaction to this?

DR. CHAUDHURY: I have also in
front of me the memorandum given
by Prof. Dave. Because this is go-
ing to be an official document, I would
lik2 to point out that both Prof. Dave
and Prof Shivaji Rao are not docto-
rate holders. Not that I am trying
to malign them but the fact should
be -ecorded. They are not Ph. Ds.

Of course, the pollutants discharged
in the air are carried by the air me-
dium and the pollutants which arz
discharged in water are carried by
water medium. But the nature of
dispersion of the pollutantg is com-
parabie; only the media are different.
There are many basic coolg which are
very common in the utilisation of the
dispersion pattern whether it jg air
or water. Prof. Dave tries to say
that water pollutant recognises geo-
graphica! boundary whereas air pol-
lutant do=s not. I do not think it is
correct. Both do not recognise geo-
graph'cal boundary. If it ig an inter-
country rivar, it doeg not recognise
geographical boundary. If it is a
river confined within the country
from its origin to ity destination, of
course it recogn.ses geographical
boundary.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Evea then it

coverg severii States.

DR. CHAUDHURY: So, in thig res-
pect I cannot differntiate one from
the other. = Then, the kind of engi-
neering training given today under
the name of environmental training
doeg not cover only water pollution
control. It also covers air pollution
contral 1 came acrosg 5 specialist in
air pollution control from the USA
the other day. He said. even today
in USA they find it difficult to fill up
posts for air pollution control becaus2
of dearth of manpower. So, we will
be facing that kind of difficulty here
also.



SHRI VASANT SATHE: Is not air

poliution control an independent
branch of environmental science?

DR. CHAUDHURY: There will al-
ways be specialists in certain greas.
A person who has always been work-
ing in air pollution control by his con-
stant exposure to that gubject will be
definitely more speCialised *han a per-
son who has got a general acquain-
tance with the subject. In medical
practice also, there are ENT and
other specialists,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: A heart
specialist will not be entrusted with

neuro surgery unless he j3 an expert
in that also. -

DR. CHAUDHURY: In thal. matter,

there will alwayg be a general parc-
titioner. '

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Jistinction -
that Prof, Dave has sought to bring
s that there is a certain difference
between the two but the fact is that
they are both closely related.

SHRI VASANT SATHE:; It they
were the same technology, then what

was the need of having a separate
Act for this?

DR, CHAUDHURY: When we are
sgeaking on the air pollution control
Bill, we are providing some enabling
provisions and also some operative
“lauses. Now, when you have given
‘hese enabling clauses as wel} as
operative clauses regardless whether
it is given to a single agency or two
agencies, depending on the strength
hat you have provided in this varti-
cular Bill, the function of air pollu-
tlon Board will be in that order.

MR, CHAIRMAN: There was an-
other guggestion. Generally it is
\greed that there ig a possibility of

having one Air Pollution Boaxd at the .

Centre as an independent Board
apart from the Water Pollution
Board, provided the Centrai Board
giveg some of its functions to the

State Boards., Now, here is a central
board of which you are ¢he Chair-
man. According to thig Act, it will
automatically get converted into
Water and Air Pollution Board with-
out any influx of expertise or mem.
bership. Would you think, us Cl:air-
man of the Water Pollution Board,
you can handle air pollution without
any additional input?

DR. CHAUDHURY: The Board
consists of 17 Memberg whether there
is any change or no change, Ajg a
matter of fact the Board may be
meeting six timeg in a year or four
times in a year. During this once in
two months meeting, they will go into
various aspects of policy matters and
it may last for four or six hours.
This is the only counsel we receive
from the rest of the Board Members.
The major functions are really per-
formed by the Chairman and the
Member Secretary of the Board. If
it is so desired that some of the Board
Members ghould be so organised that
they cater to two disciplines—water
interest as wel] as air interest—these
17 members can always be re-organis-
ed. The strength of technical func-
tioning of the organisation is really
not lying with the Board; it is lying
with the technical wing of the whole

" organisation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The expertise
at present iz of water pollution. If
air pollution ig added to it would
you be able to strengthen the tech-
nical wing?

DR. CHAUDHURY: Most of the
Boards have got two wings—scientiflc
wing and technical wing. Both the
wingg consist of knowledgeable peo-
ple in air as well ag water. That
means, people will have to be streng-
thened in both the wings.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: There is
one difficulty which occurs to me Con-
stitutionaly, this Act is under Art. 253
and the Water Pollution Act is under
252 whereas the State Boards are
under the States’ Acts having been



given consent by the President and
they exercise certain independent
authority under the Constitution.
Now, under this Act, whatever deci-
sions are taken by the Air Pollution
Authority they will be binding on
all States Boards, Whereag the Board
is one, it was having different autho-
rities under this. Will it not result
in dichotomy in the State Boards
themselves exercising one authority
under one Act and the same persons
having another authority under an-
other Act? So, when you think of an
independent Act at the Centre, would
it not be advisable to have a compre-
hensive authority dealing with air
pollution at the Centre itself having
proper expertise, which would handle
the whole job with units in the States?
What objection have you to that?

Then jou made a remark about
Prof. Dave and Prof. Shivaji Rao not
being Ph.D. Does that in any way
minimise, according to you, their
knowledge or expertise in their res-
pective fields?

DR. CHAUDHURY: I have mnot
reflected on the level of knowledge of
these persons. I'have no desire to do

that. 'v'!;

SHRI VASANT SATHE: These two
persons are internationally accepted
and recognised for their expertise in
their branch.

DR. CHAUDHURY: Agreed. put
would you not accept that it is with-
out doctorate?

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What has
doctorate to do with that?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Regarding the
setting up of an entirely new structure
under this Act except the point that
Dr. Zakaria and others have raised
with regard to the unavailability of
personnel, which can pe met in fact
by appointing many of the persons
who are on the Water Board ag mem-
bers of this Board, is there any
other problem? For example, if you
set up an independent board, largely
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the same people can be appointed
part-time, Is there any basic objec-
tion to setting up an entirely new set
up? Are you afraid that there will
be lack of co-ordination or there
will not be sufficient expertise? What
is the fear?

DR. CHAUDHURY: I was trying to
say that if these two comaponents, air
and water, are coming under the pur-
view of the same type of body, then
why not we try to integrate it rather
than geparate it? I had no other
intention in mentioning it.

SHR] VASANT SATHE: We could
later on think of having an environ-
menta] wing in the Ministry which
will coordinate the working of the
various branches on environment.
Then coordination could be brought
about. But you mentioned the exam-
ple of medical terminology of neuro-
surgery and E&T. Apart from the
constitutional difficulty, what is your
objection to having a Board with a
Chairman who ig knowledgeable like
you?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Let me give you
the example of Air India and Indian
Airlines. Now they have integrated
and have one Chairman, which is a
different matter. But earlier wa had
a situation where the members of the
Board were common but the Chair-
man was different. When they dealt
with the problemg of Air India, the
concerned Chairman would preside
and so also in the case of IAC. Is it
not possible to get over the constitu-
tiona) difficulty and also the difficul-
ty of some States not having accept-
ed the Water Pollution Board yet,
and have a mechanism whereby for
all practical purposes the same peo-
ple will be involved?

DR, CHAUDHURY: There are two
aspects. One ig legal for which I am
not competent to say anything, as to
how it can be brought about. A
reference wag made to specialisation
in neuro-surgery and heart. But
specialisation in air and water pollu-



tion is not that fine, as it is in the
case of medicine,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What is the
situation in Scandinavian countries,
Germany, England, France or USA?
Do they have common Boards?

DR. CHAUDHURY: I will take USA
and Japan one a large country and
another a tiny one. In the USA they
have got one single Environmental
Protection Agency at the Central
level, having all kinds of disciplines
in jt. Similarly, in Japan they have
an Environmental Agency having all
the built in components in it. Both
these two organisations are directly
regponsible to the Ministry. Both
countires have federal structures. If
we come to UK they have created a
river authority, which is in charge of
the total water management system,
starting from the use and discharge.
They have got the alkaline spectrum,
which is looking to air pollution from
alkaline industry, which is one of the
oldest gystem in that country. Even
though that unit is still maintained
and there are two parallel organisa-
tions running, there is co-ordination
done. Here is an example which, of
course, we can cite regarding where
these two &re kept separate.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You are ans-
wering an earlier question. Your
fear is simply this that there will be
overlapping, duplication and lack of
coordination. Ig this the basic appre-
hension in setting up an independent
body?

DR. NILAY CHAUDHURY: Yes,
overlapping and duplication are there
definitely. Lack of coordination is
also there. Consequently there is
unnecessary expenditure also.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But if that
duplication and overlapping can be
kept to the minimum by adopting
some kind of a strategem, gay labo-
ratory facilities can be common, tech-
nical expertise can be common, is it
your feeling that by setting up a
separate body, we would be moving

away from the integrated environ-
mental approach, which ig supposed
to be the idea?

DR. NILAY CHAUDHURY: My
major fear ig there. That means, ins-
tead of integration we will have a
kind of conflict of specialisation.
After all, there will be two Chairmen
and so there will Dbe personality
clash,

SHRI VASANT SATHE: What con-
flict do you envisage?

DR. NILAY CHAUDHURY: The
major conflict would be that the
Chairman from the water pollution
side would be keeping his interest to
keep his water clean.

MR. CHAIRMAN: An interesting
point was made today. He said that
many of the air pollution prevention
techniques resulted in water pollu-
tion because when you scrub the air,
for example, you really wash it with
water. What you are doing is that
you are reducing air pollution but you
are increasing water pollution. This
is something which had not struck
me.

DR. NILAY CHAUDHURY: This
pollution, after all is not banished.
The only thing is that sometimes we
convert that into an innocuous stage.

SHRI VASANT SATHE: Ag far as
the coordination aspect is concerned,
if the coordination cell ig there in
the Ministry where both the Chair-
men would be there with the Secre-
tary and with the Minister dealing
with this, then why should there be
one man? Because, there is this
tendency of centralisation also. We
have geen the Secretary being also
the Director in many fields. This
tendency also grows. When we are
talking of specialisation and expertise
growing coordination apart from the
legal aspect—and I am very serious
on this legal difficulty because of the
two Acts being wunder two different
Articles, scope being different alto-
gether—will create a hell of complica-



tion at State level. But apart from
that, if coordination is provided for,
then why can’t there %e coordination
between specialists at the ministerial
level? And there can be Joint Com.-
mittee of two Boards where both the
Chairmen will meet. For example, as
he said, if a particular air pollution
technology is going to enhance water
pollution, how to minimise that?
Both will have to be taken care of.
But if there is one man and if his ex-
pertise is more on water pollution
aspect, human beings being what they
are, he may neglect the air pollution
aspect to that extent and there will
be no answerability to the air pollu-
tion aspect and his viewpoint will
dominate, As we have seen yesterday,
although we are becoming conscious
of air pollution only of late, water
pollution problem has been there for
quite some time. But you have seen
the hazards of air pollution. There.
fore, a sevious note has to be taken
of this aspect and a greater aware-
ness has to come in the country. That
would be possible only if the specia-
lisation is under a separate Board
but with coordination. Otherwisz the
whole objective of the Act may get
defeated,

MR. CHRAIRMAN: The fear is that
this is the water Pollution Act and
we will not be calling it ‘the air and
water pollution’. All that will hdppen
is that the Water Pollution Board
will be given air pollution work. Air
pollution work will become the junior
partner. So, the fear is that the spe-
cial emphasis that ig required on air
pollution may get diluted in the
water,

There should be a Ministry for en-
vironment or a department of envi.
ronment, We can have a Departmer.t
of Environment, like the Ministry of
Works, Housing and Environment.
This is the recommendation we will
make. We have got a Department of
Environment in the Government of
India headed bv a Secretarv, who
would provide the coordination bet-
ween the Water Pollution Board, and
the Air Pollution Board. Probably
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we may set up separately a Noise
Pollution Board. All these environ-
mental control bodies would be co-
ordinated at the level of the Depart-
ment of Environment in the Ministry
of Works, Housing and Environment.
This is something which should be
considered,

DR. NILAY CHAUDHURY: Pro-
bably as you say, that is the thing to
come. In other words, if really we
have to integrate the various aspects
of environment, in order to give a
requisite thought in each area of the
environment, we will have to set up
a Board or an expert body and there
will have to be such an organijsation
like this.

There is another point. I do not
know whether it i8 relevant here to
mention. Clause 18 of this Bill reads
as follows:

“In the performance of its func-
tions under this Act—

(a) the Centra] Board shall be
bound by such directions in
writing as the Central Gov-
ernment may give jt; and

(b) every State Board shall be
bound by such directions in
writing as the Central Board
or the State Government

may give it;”

The same thing is in regard to
Water. In other words, if there is
any conflict as is mentioned here,
because these two are  constituted
under Separate Acts, they may nct
abide by the instructions or direc-
tions given by the Centre to the
States. In both cases, the enabling
provisions are there.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Nobel
Prize Winner, Dr. George Ball, is
lecturing today at 5 pm. at the
India International Centre, and [
happen to be presiding over it. He
is a great environmentalist, he is
very much against nuclear explo.
siong ete. So, I suggest we may crn-
clude out afterMoon  session by
4.30 to enable Members and senior



officials who wish to attend it to go.
We have arranged a bus which will
be available at 4.30 p.m. So, we
meet at 3.00 and conclude by 4.30.

Tomorrow, we have only one wit-
nesg in the morning, Dr. Deoras of
Bombay, but I have also requested
the Secretary of the Petroleum Mi-
nistry, Mr. B. G. Vohra, to come
at 12 O'clock.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Will it
not be good to have a lesser number

of people to make the Board more
effective and efficient?

DR. CHAUDHURY: I would like
to mention that for minor offences if
some direct power is given to the
Board, it would be helpful.

In regard to the size of the Board,
our experience is that it is becomes

very difficult to get the quorum
sometimes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Therefore, you

think a larger or smaller number is
better?

DR. CHAUDHURY: I do not know,
I am not clear on it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It may cut
both ways.

(The Committee adjourned at
13.00 hours and reassembled at 15.00
hours.)

1lI1. Dr. B, B. Chatterjee,
Professor of FPhysiological and
Industria] Hygiene
All India Institute of Hygiene
and Public Health, Calcutta

(The witness was called in and he
took his gedt)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro-
ceed, T may draw your attention to
Direction 58 of the Directions of the
Speaker which reads as follows:

“58. Where witnesses appear be-
fore a Committee to give evidence,

the Chairman shall make it clear
to the witnesses that their evidence
shall be treated as public agnd is
liable to be published, unless they
specifically desire that all or any
part of the evidence given by them
is to be treated as confidentiul. It
shall however, be explained to the
witnesses that even though they
might desire their evidence tv be
treated as confldential such evi-
dence is liable to be made available
to the Members of Parliament ”

‘Mr. Chatterjee, you are ysscciated
with an importany medica] insti-

tution where the public health
aspects are particularly in pro-
minance . Naturally, our Bill on

Air Pollution has got a very direct
correlation with health because in
the ultimate analysis, air pollution is
a grave health hazard. We were
therefore rather surprised when we
saw the report of the Study Group
of our Committee in which you are
reported to have expressed the view
that in fact there was no necessity
for a Bill and that there was no
threat to health from air pollution.
This is so startling and so much
against the whole thrust of our de-
liberations that the Committer is still
in a state of advanced ghock and
therefore, we thought that we would
invite you here to give your oral
evidence as to whether you  mis-
understood or in fact these are your
views. If these are your views, we
would like them to be elucidated. We
do not want to influence your views
in any way. Would you like to say
anything?

MR. CHATTERJEE: As a matter
of fact, I have been discussing +his
with my students also for some years
because I teach atmospheric pollu-
tion and 1 give my candid views to
my students. I told the same to the
Committee. I learnt from the Mem-
bers of the Committee who  visited
the Institute that it is not very well
understood by the average public, a
lay person. It depends on the dnsage
particularly when we are desling



with chemicals. For instance, hy-
droxide ig poisonous, but in medicine
we use it in a diluted fashion. At.
mospheric pollution is bad. Every-
body knows that atmospheric pollu-
tion is bad. But the crux of the mat-
ter ig that it is the dosage of the
poisonous things in the air, water or
whatever it j5 that matters. What
we have to consider is the dosage of
the toxicated elements in the air.
So many gtudies have been made. It
first started in 1955-—59. NEERI and
BARC have been collecting data from
various parts of India. These data
are being publisheq in the various
journals. A consideration of what the
WHO and the other peopls have
gaid—they have said that thes¢ are
the levels which are harmful—would
show that whenever such things are
specified, there is always a reservation
and a safety factor. In the subject
that I profess, occupational health,
we tackle a lot of poisonous things at
the work place like the carbon mono-
xide. Upto the leve] of dosage which
would not be harmful, it could be
allowed. But beyond that, something
should be done to control the carbon
monoxide. The lay person can ask
why there should be any carbon mo-
noxide at all, but such a thing, unfor.
tunately, is Utopian. It ig not pos-
sible to arrange zero exposure, nei-
ther is it necessary. The body has
got sufficient reserves to take care
of such things. Some geusstimates
have also been made of the tolerable
limits. I have given figures for 20
years, from 1955 to 1975, which show
that in spite of the increase in popu-
lation in these 20 years and the com-
ing up of a number of new indus-
tries, the level hag more or less re-
mained constant. It is not ag if you
start an industry and immecdiately
pollution springs up. So, my sub-
mission ig that pollution is not suffi-
ciently high for us to have an all-
embracing Bill like this at this mo-
ment. It is there in some localised
places like the Chembur-Trombay
area, but to contain that it is quite
sufficieny to take some local action.

49

The powers of the local bodies and
municipalities can be strengtheaed.

Let us take the disease that we
are trying to prevent. This is nowa-
days known as chronic non.specific
regpiratory disease (CNSRD), like
chronic bronchitis. This js inti.nately
connected with the levels of atmos-
pheric pollution. This is one of the
important diseases in Gt. Britain and
some of the other industrialised coun-
tries. This is becoming more gnd
more important, but we do nut have
any data about it in our country.

The other fact is that this particu-
lar diseasg is caused by various other
factors also like smoking, socio-eco-
nomic situation, grim over-crowding
etc. So, by controlling atmospheric
pollution alone, which js not

very
much, you cannot get rii of this
disease. So, my suggestion j; that

controlling levels of pollution should
not be done in the name of health.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your contention
that pollution does not constitute a
health hazard seems to run in the
face of all the evidence which has
appeared so far in India and abroad.
Yesterday somebody said that if the
Mathura Refinery comes up, a mil-
lion people may be poisoned, subject
to cancer in one way or another.
There are lots of studies all over the
world, I had seen some of them when
I was Minister of Health, to show
without any doubt that there is cor-
relation between the quality of the
air and the quality of health. You
are right when you say that there are
certain levels beyond which there is
health hazard, but could it be your
contention that altho' gh those levels
may not yet have been reached in
many parts of India, a farsighted
Parliament or Government should not
take steps now ijtself, but wait for
those levels to be reached and people
to get the disease, because we are
now in a critical phase of industrial
and economic development and un-
less we build this anti.pollution tech-

nology into our industrial structure



and unless we accept environmental
values now ay an essential and in-
tegral part of our planning, then in
2000 A.D. when your successor says
that the danger )evels have been
reached, we may not be able to re-
verse the process. I can understand
your feeling that the threat is over-
estimated or exaggerated, but I can-
not understand your attitude that we
should not have a Bill.

DR. CHATTERJEE: The control
proposed is only a patchwork, it is
not a radical solution. The radical
solution to the atmospheric pollution
problem is to try to develop {fuels
which are non-polluting. In a couple
of decades, possibly, sooner or later,
the technology would have given us
the answer and we would have fuels
which would not give rise to pollu-
tion like harnessing of the solar
energy. 1 have purposely put it as
twenty years because if you  wait
for two or three decades, people will
not be dying and by that time we
would have already developed non-
polluting fuel. If the Parliament is
really keen to do something about
atmospheric pollution, it should give
more attention for the development
of non-polluting fuel.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The two things
are not mutually exclusive.

DR, CHATTERJEE: In Brazil, for
automobiles, they are compulsorily
mixing alcohol with petroleum. This
is known as gasoline. As a matter of
fact, this is used without much mo-
dification of the internal combustion
engine. They mix up 30 to 40 per
cent of alcohol with petroleum. In
addjtion to the advantage of not
polluting the air, that saves petro-
leum. Now in a country like India
which is an agricultural country, al-
cohol can be very easily made in
very large quantities from  wastes,
celluloge materials. The technology
is there. There have been some stu-
dies by NEERI as to what is the
pollution level in Calcutta and in
other places. They have gtudied that

the Chemical engineering and ordi-
nary engineering industries and
power houses and so on and so forth
have 30 many tonneg of these and
how much is being thrown out per
day, per year. They have also esti-
mated the quantity that has been
thrown out by domestic burning of
the fuels. The exhaust from the in-
dustry comes out from the high level,
it gets diluted and goes down ulti-
mately. But the low level pollution
which affects the people’s health lar-
gely is that which comes out from
domestic  burning. This would
amount to a sufficient quantity and
would lead to a great deal of at.
mospheric pollution. What can this
Act do for supply of what I consider
is one of the major pollutants con-
tributing a large amount of pollut-
ants at the lower level which affects
the people residing near about.

DR. CHATTERJEE: Your point is
that the main pollutant is our fuels.
Therefore, such varieties of fuels
should be developed which  would
have less pollution, or no pollution.
That is alright. This s a good sug-
gestion. Even then, if we have a Bill,
then only the pollution will be mo-
nitored at gll.

SHRI R. K. MHALGI: 1 come
from the surroundings of Bombay
and your experience about Calcutta
appears to be different from Bombay.
A number of people in Bombay have
complained that they are suffering
from a particular disease because of
this air pollution. Have you at any
time wutudied the surroundings of
Bombay?

DR. CHATTERJEE: I did not have

much opportunity to study Bombay
area. But I was told that there are

some pockets where the pollution
level i3 high.

SHRI R. K. MHALGI: You have
made g suggestion that something

could be locally done. Bombay Mu- Iy

nicipality is making efforts since the
last ten years. But they could not
control it.

I



DR. CHATTERJEE: A survey is
being conducted under the aegies of
the Bombay Municipality and the
KEM Hospital, by my friend Dr.
Kamath. It is a long-term study.
What the people allege should not be
completely ignored. But as people
get to know a little about something,
they always allege that this thing is
causing the disease. The cause and
effect relationship is not so very easy
to establish. I found some of the
members alleging that everybody
knows that atmospheric pollution is
harmful. It was not known till 1952.
As a matter of fact in London it was
found that the episode of fog has
taken a toll of 40,000 lives and then
a study wag carried out and the sci-

entists have come out saying that
there were some acute and chronic
effects. Nobody knew jt till  1952.

Now that they have come to know
about it, they are alleging that every.
thing that is happening is due to air
pollution. Here I would like to refer
to a small paragraph from gan edi-
torial written by Prof. Holland in
the journal of International Union
Against Tuberculosis—it is from the
Journal of September, 1978—he has
done a lot of work in atmospheric
pollution—of course, it does not sup-
port my views—he says:

“What is not known is the re-
levant dose of air pollution... As I
have said, it is far more difficult
to advise the legislators about the
maximum levels below we can be

sure that no ill-effects will be
there...”
There are other facts also like en-

vironmenta] overcrowding.

SHRI SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Just now, in reply to the
other hon. Member, he said that he
hag not had an opportunity to study
the gituation in Bombay. The ques-
tion is whether he availed himself
of the opportunities of studying the
conditions in Calcutta. The question
is whether he undertook some study
to indicate the effects of air pollu-
tion on the health of the people re-
siding in the industrial areas, slum

areas and other congested pockets in
Caloutta, which would gubstantiate
the contention of Dr. Chatterjee that
the air pollution is not a health
problem. His earlier reply was in
the negative. He made it absolutely
clear that it was not on the basiz of
any actual study undertaken by him.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Perhaps from
publisheq statistics by other people.

SHRI SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: If they had quoted, we
could have understood, but it was
rather empirical,

He gsays that firstly it is not a
health hazard, and secondly, it is not
due to release from industrial units,
but rather from domestic fuel at
the lower jevel. That also has not
been properly explained.

As far back as 1970 his  Institute
framed a model Bill which has now
come up, but Dr. Chatterjee sayg that
it is not a health hazard. He was
asked about the safe level. The
scientists there contended that, it was
49 for Calcutta, but he says it is 80
micrograms, but he had no scientific
data to support what he said. Even
today facts have not been cited. A
belief js expressed, but a belief is not
a scientific exposition. So, I request
him to enumerate his observations
and experiments.

DR. CHATTERJEE: Ag g matter of
fact, the Director of the National In-
stitute of Environmental Health, Ah.
medabad, wanted to have a survey
of atmospheric pollution. I am a
Member of the Advisory Committee
of that Institute. I persuaded him
not to embark on this, because after
spending a great deal of money and
energy they will not be able to show
anything, since there are 10 or 11
factors causing this CNSRD. We
must have gome 5 lakhs of people
under surveillance for gtudying all
these factors and find out the truth
statistically. Dr. Kamath hes taken
up a study. Maybe after five
years some result will come out of it,



but it it is honestly screened, the
findings will be very meagre.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is there anyone
else in your Institute who subecribes
to your views?

DR. CHATTERJEE; Practically
nobody .

SHRI M. V. KRISHNAPPA: We
visited the Indraprastha Power House
the other day. It is supposed to
throw out 90 tonnes of ash per day.
Now they are developing a device to
reduce it to 9 tonnes. What is the
harm in asking them to reduce it?

DR. CHATTERJEE: There i8 no
harm.

SHRI M. V. KRISHNAPPA: That
may require a law.

DR. CHATTERJEE: That is my
question. Does it require an all-em-
bracing law? It is in the public sec-
tor. Many of these units in the
public sector can be made to reduce
the pollution even otherwise. They
must also estimate the cost benefit,
what it costs to reduce it.

SHRI SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Wherefrom do you get
the idea that this Bill is only o
prevent health hazard to human
beings?

DR. CHATTERJEE: It is under the
Health Ministry.

SHRI SOURENDRA SHATTA-
CHARJEE: No, it is under the
Works & Housing Ministry. ‘This
Institute did not send any memoran.
dum. His opinion was sought on the
entire Bill. Now he says he thought
it concerned only health.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Health is an
important part of it.

SHRI TRii~n£]1 SINGH: Do not
sulphur dioxide particles suspended
in the air constitute a health hazard?

DR. CHATTERJEE: If you gee the
range, it is 330 to 663, but if we take
continuous data for 24 hours, it shows
that the average comeg more near to
the minimum.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But the health
will be affected by the maximum and
not by the minimum. It is like the
story of a man who wanted to cross
a river. He was told that the aver-
age depth is four feet: so he went
acrosz but got drowned because it
was 20 ft. in between.

Here also, they are affected by the
highest level and not by the average.

DR. CHATTERJEE: I teach the
subject and it is my view that the
levels that are present now are not
very high and they are not likely to
be high for a couple of decades.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now, thank you
very much, Dr. Chatterjee.

(The witness then withdrew)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Now we had
invited the Director of the National
Botanica] Institute, but he has not
come. We have dealt with the Taj
and other monuments and we have
dealt with human beings. We
thought our vegetabie life also re-
quires some kind of special protec-
tion, but he has not arrived. He has
said he was going to be represented
by two other people but, unless they
are lost in the Botanical Gardens
somewhere, they don't seem to have
arrived here.

(The Committee then adjourned)
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Dr. P. J. Deoras, Medical Biologist,

(The witness was called in and he
took his seat)

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Deoras,
before we start your evidence, I
would like to jnform you that in ac-
cordance with the provisions contain-
ed in Rule 58 and the Directions of
the Speaker, your evidence will be
treated as public and is liabje to be
published unless, of course, you spe-
cifically desire that any part of it be
kept confidential. Even in that event,
it wil] be available to Members of
Parpnament., 1 just inform you about
thas.

You have given us a memorandum
in which you have made certain con-
crete suggestions with regard to the
Bill and I am very glad that you
have given the origina] as well as the
change. 1 wish more people could do
that. Otherwise, you have got to
keep consulting all the time what
the original is.

There seems to be 2 or 3 main
points in your memorandum, Before
we ask any question, would you like
to present your views ~before the
Committee?

DR. DEORAS: The first and maqst
important point is that you have
mentioned in the Preamble that all
this started because of the decisions
taken at the UN Conference on Hu-

con3sultant Post Graduate Guide
Bombay University Consultant Bom bay.

man Environment held in Stockholm.
The phrase ‘human environment’ it-
self is rather ambiguous. There can-
not be anything like human environ-
ment. It is an environment which is
shared by all living things. In that
connection I think we have got to go
in for a comprehensive Bill on the pro-
tection of total environment. We have
got a law on water pollution and we
are now going to have a law on air
pollution. Then there is the sound
pollution created by aircraft. There
ig also pollution by wastes pesticides
and in proper conservation. So, in due
course we have to go in for a comp-
rehensive Bill. Unless that is done,
the problem will not be over. I have
mentioned here that this Bill has not
specifically mentioned anything about
pollution from the aircraft in the
sense that it may be spdiling the air,
apart from the boom of the sound.
It should be a comprehensive Bill
taking into account the total en-
vironment.,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Your point is
well taken. I may inform you that,
as far g4 the idea of the comprehen-
sive Bill ig concerned, it etarteq oft
with this objective. But, there were
certain problemg which followed.
Certainly, we may move towards a
comprehensive Bill.



Incidentally, thi®s human environ-
ment hag been taken from the UN.
Conference which wag largely accept-
ed all over the world. You are right
that it is not only human environ-
ment but it includeg also natural en-
viroament,

DR. DEORAS: I think you have
not taken into account the noise
caused by aircraft.

MR, CHAIRMAN: We wanted to
include the word ‘sound’ also.

DR. DEORAS: In the case of the
definition for air pollution in the
present Bill you have put in solid
liquig etc. It is all right. One word
must also be put in there, namely,
‘emission’, Emission mayv not do any
harm to the human beingg for one
second or go but if the duration is
very considerable, then it will be
harmful to health. I therefore think
that the word ‘emission’ shoulq also
be put in. If you go near the emission
and remein there for a Rajor dura-
tion, the health might be affected.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Small duration
may be a cumulative thing It may
add up to some pollution. Take for in-
stance gutomobilee. A number of
automobileg may emit gmoke. Even
though it may be very small, the
cumulative effect is none-theless
Gerious,

DR, DEORAS: The pollution for
a few minuteg may not affect one's
health,

MR. CHAIRMAN: If there are
10,000 automobiles each one emitting
smoke, then they may do injury to
health,

DR. DEORAS: The word ‘concen-
tration’ ig all right. My next point is
that there are a number of appliances
that have been mentioned. Take for
fastance gadgets, equipment which
goes in for the induction. In places

AN

like Kanpur, Delhi and Agra you
find coal being used in chulha or
brick kilns. These are not taken into
account,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Does it include
domestic—cooking coal also?

DR. DEORAS: Naturally,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Is it true that
railways, steamships etc, are not
covered by the present definition?

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL: Rail-
ways are not covered.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 think railways
are also an important source of pollu-
tion, You may incorporate the aero-
planes, railways and steam ship under
‘vehicle’. Then you go on to cay
emission by automobiles internal
combustion engineg and all such vehi-
cles drive by purning fuel, Even this
does mot cover the Railways. Why
don’t you try to cover railways also?

PETROLEUM MINISTRY: We havg
to use one word ‘railways’ every-
where.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I think you must
clarify this. Maybe, it i g legal
matter The Law Ministry will exa-
mine this. They have not been able
to incorporate ‘noise pollution’ in this
Bill. We ghall put it in our report.

DR. DEORAS: We camnot put it in
the Bill.

MR. CHAIRMAN: By the by, Dr.
Deorag you are a Memer of the Maha-
rashtra Board for the Water Pollution.
May we know how ig it functioning
there?

DR. DEORAS: I think this is the
only Board in India that ig function-
ing pretty well. Others have not
started functioning,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Do you think
that we can entrust the work of air-
pollution to the existing Water Pollu-



tion Boardg or should we set up a
new parallel organisation for the pur-
pose?

DR. DEORAS: I think it should be
incorporated here. With the provi-
sions that are there they are function-
ing well. There are a number of
members nominated from Fisheries,
Industrieg and Agriculture depart-
ments on thig Board. There are three
Legislative Council Members also on
thig board. To me I think there
should be members who know some-
thing gbout Environmental Science.

MR, CHAIRMAN: What do the
Council Memberg know about this?

DR, DEORAS: They are just nomi-
nated by Government.

SHRI R. K. MHALGI: Some quota
may be there for the Legislators,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Deoras, the
Members will be interested in your
viewpoints, Two viewpoints have
been put before the Committee—one
view point ig that they should have
a geparate organisation for air pollu-
tion including some geparate State
Boards, The other viewpoint ig that
we should give this work to the State
Boards. So, there is a sharp diver-
gence of views on thig point. The
third is to have a common Chairman.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: What is your idea of having
a Vice-Chairman?

DR, DEORAS: There should
course be one Vice-Chairman.

of

The number of mon officia} members
should be increased from three to five.
We should have a scientific personnel.
I do not think that in U.P. Board
there are scientist members being put
in. I dg not know also how it fumc-
tions in U.P, There shoulq be one
composite board.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Do you think
that the Vice-Chairman ghould be a
specialist jn agir pollution?
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DR, DEORAS: He should be. In
the Environmental Conference our
objective was to have a comprehen-
sive Bill. You must put in the words
‘sound pollution’ in addition to the

words ‘solid waste and concentra-
tions'.
SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-

NAN: Mr. Chairman, I want to put
a few questions to the witness, First-
ly, I want him to tell us whether the
Maharashtra Water. Pollution Board
is working well and, secondly they
have the necessary laboratorieg for
the purpose.

DR. DEORAS: We have a Central
Laboratory in Bombay. Besides we
have six laboratories jin different
places, Recently, we have merged
these six laboratorieg with the Health
Department because the laboratories
in the Health Department are more or
less doing the similar kind of work.
In fact we are going to augment these
laboratories, I do not think that any
other State hag got ag many labora-
tories as we have. Only last week,
we had selected certain personnel.
The Boarq is also getting equipped
with gtaff for the air-pollution. We
have purchased some equipment and
have got the staff. They have started
doing work on air pollution also. Thug
our board though meant for water
pollution, Has started working on air
pollution also,

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: Do you have difficulty in find-
ing the right personnel for manning
them?

DR. DEORAS: Yes, That difficulty
ig there. Particularly, in Bombay,
which ig heavily industrialised, com-
petent persons are drawn by the in-
dustry. ’

MR. CHAIRMAN: Dr. Deoras, you
said that your Board is working well.
Do you think any impact hag been
made on air pollution levelg in Bom-
bay?

DR. DEORAS: We are not dealing
with air pollution, Since there i no



law. But along with Municipa} Cor-
poration we are dealing with it.

DR. BHATTACHARJEE: Havye you
got anything to suggest regarding
17 (f). There is no mention of loco-
motive.

.']r).R‘ DEORAS: I made mention of
locomotive in the very early begin-
ning.

MR, CHAIRMAN: I think i the
deflnition is clarified then that will
cover.

DR. DEORAS: Yes.

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: A sugges-
tion has been made before the Com-
mittee that if Mathura Reflnery s
located near the sea-coast it will
avoid both water and air pollution.

DR. DEORAS: Whenever any fac-
tory iz to be located at a particular
place one should see the background
level of pollution, In Agra, Kanpur,
Bharatpur, etc, you have so many
‘chullahs’ and brick kilns, Mathura
refinery pollution will be in addition
to the pollution which is already
there from existing sources. Apart
from the Mathura Refinery there
will be a petro-chemicals complex
and it will go in for water pollu-
tion. 'There will be sulphur dioxide.
Sulphur dioxide apart from being
harmful to human beings and Taj is
also harmful for production of wheat
and vegetation, There ig a lot of land
wader agricultural in U.P, The total
output of sugarcane and other crops
will get reduced, All the liquid pollu-
tants will go into Jamuna and
from Jamuna it will go into Ganga.
Thousands of people come for a
dip in these rivers and when they
will take a dip there will be tar on
their bodies. So, you have to take the
total background &nd the overall pic-
ture of damage to environment into
account.
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SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Do you
think concentratien of brick-kilng
around urban areas is g source of
great pollution?

DR. DEORAS: Yes,

SHRI TRILOKI SINGH: Wwill it
affect agriculture?

DR, DEORAS: Yes, I am told due
to pollution one or two types of man-
goes are not yielding fruits properly
in U.P,

MR. CHAIRMAN: May I come
back to the Bill? You have said two
things. You gaid in the Schedule we
should add the words ‘domestic fire
aad trash and open fire’, Are they
not covered in the present Bill?

DR. DEORAS: I do not think they
are covered at present. In 1952 4 to 5
thousands of people died in London
on account of smog primarily caused
of domestic fire and factory chemical
effluents.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Nearly 4,000
people died.
DR. DEORAS: The chemicals

settled down, in the fog caused brea-
thing trouble.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Do you
they should be brought within
ambit of this Bills?

DR. DEORAS: VYes,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Thisg ig a point
which we would consider. let us go
to the next one. What about fines?
Are they too small, according to you?

DR. DEORAS: The quantum
fing ehould be increased.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Sometimes for
individuals it may become if—diffi-
cult, For industries it may be possi-
ble. And when you make some pun-
ishment too gevere, the judges also
tend not to give any punishment at
all, We can consider that.

think
the

of



DR. DEORAS: I remember once
when President Férd came and visit-
ed cleveland certain factorieg in the
area emitting afffuent; were imposed
fine of 15,000 dollarg for that day.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: What js your experience in
Maharashtra?

DR. DEORAS: We have launched
prosecution against 35 industries,

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: Ig the action effective?

DR, DEORAS: If we issue notice
of prosecution especially for big In-
dustrieg that itself is a sort of punish-
ment for them. If you say some big
factory’s name ig there in the list,
they will rectify the mistake. This sort
of deterrent is there, Merely giving
their name will set them right.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In respect of
some other factories, their nameg do
not count very much!

DR. DEORAS: For them the fine is
there,

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: What is their experience?
Have you punished anybody? Why
do you say it should be higher pun-
ishment?

DR, DEORAS; We have gone for
prosecution ag I said already.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Hig general feel-
ing iz that it i somewhat less and it
should be increased,

MR. CHAIRMAN: How long ago?

DR. DEORAS: From 5 or 6 months
of punishment, it takeg quite some
time to prosecute.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Are you hopetul
that you will be able to get them con-
victed?

DR, DEORAS: Many of them said
that they would like to compound the
issues after rectification. We have
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seen that they had completely changed
even after a notice. Danda should be
shown but may not actually be used.
Thig will be a sufficient deterrent,

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-

CHARJEE: You have given some
suggestion regarding Water Control
Board administering the consent

clause. How effective hgg it been so
far? ’

DR. DEORAS: Consent hag been
obtained to in respect of about 6,000
industries in Maharashtra,

PROF, SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: You have elaborate ma-
chinery?

DR. DEORAS: Memberg go
see that there ig no pollution.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Maharashtra Act
ig not a Central Act,

DR. DEORAS: That was the first
Act in India; then latey on the Cen-
tral Act came in.

and

PROF, SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: But it has been put to us
by somebody that the Water Control
Board hag not been able to clear even
8 per cent of the consent applications

so far. LB 1]

MR, CHAIRMAN: That might be
the national average.

PROF, SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: That is national average.

MR, CHAIRMAN: I want to ask
you about one thing—this is regarding
environmental education. It is 3 new
science. In 20 yearg hence this ~will
assume considerable importance. We
will need expertise at various levels.
Have you looked into the question
what is needed in this regard and how
can gpecialisation be possible anq how
to reorient our educational system to
ensure constant output in this field?

DR, DEORAS: Number of initia-
tives have already been taken. We in
Bombay have already tdken certain



initiative in the matter. At B.Sc. level,
apart from Physics Chemistry and
Mathematics, there is the subject of
Environment. From this year we
have started training teachers,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Under-graduate
B.Sc. course from the first year.

DR, DEORAS: In MSc. there is
gpecialisation.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Certainly this
is a hopetul gign.

DR, DEORAS: In Maharashtra we
have introduced love of mature. In
Germany they have done it in 4 big
way.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You can give us
some more information regarding the
Maharashtra Education curriculum in
this field, how you gtresg the impor-
tance of environmental education and
go on, Maharashtra can be tdken as
a pilot project in this field. Is it
optional or compulsory?

DR, DEORAS: 1t is optiona] at
Under.graduate level. In BSe. you
have thege subjects; Entomology, En-
vironment, and so on. They are
having 4 or 5 other subjects|topics.

MR. CHATRMAN:
good,

PROF, SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Will the Water Pollution
Control Board be competent to deal
with air pollution?

That is very

MR. CHAIRMAN: He replied in
the affirmative,

DR. DEORAS: We can, You will
have a large number of civil engi-
neers; you can increase the number
of from 3 to 5 non official members.
You can have Vice-Chairman; you
will have the niecessary expertise. Thig
will be useful to look after water and
air pollution.

PROF, SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Integrated approach is
better,
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DR. DEORAS: There are 4 maiw
governmental bodies in our Board.
Therg are half-a-dozen institutions ré-
presented there. There are members
of the legislatures, MLAs. MLCs. and
50 on. -

MR. CHAIRMAN: This point was
made to us earlier saying that Gov-
ernment particularly nominateg legis-
latorg on the Board and that there
should be more of technical people
there,

DR. DEORAS: I think thig is a very
good guggestion because three months
back in one of the Board meeting we
had mentioned that pollution could
be stopped by taking gceveral mea-
sures, But some members and nomi:
nated M.L.As said that we should not
do that ip that way. There wag 8
pressure from the M.L.As and there-
fore we could not do anything in this
regard, Now, these pressure have
gone and if we thus reduce the pres-
sure, the Board will function in a
normal way.

PROF, SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: On page 2 of your Memo-
randum you have put an emphasig on
technical personnel being included
the Board, Now, I want to know whe-
ther persons working in big indus-
trieg should be included.

DR. DEORAS: No, you cannot ex-
clude them permanently. You can
give representation to some specific
group of industries. There should be
some invitees.

MR, CHAIRMAN: After all the
proper implementation of this Act
will require the cooperation of ‘indus-
tries and if the approach is that the
industry should be totally excluded
then it might be better from the tech-
nical point of view but you would not
be able to carry the industry because
many of them are public gector indus-
tries, yot only private industry.

DR, DEORAS: We have got a pro-
vision that they can be invitees and in



there were
to our

‘the earlier Board meetin,
a large number of invi
meetings,

MR. CHAIRMAN: So, the Board
<can be compact and there ghould be
.an opportunity for hearing the repre-
sentativeg from the industries. So
4hat provision ig there.

DR. DEORAS: Yes, Sir.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Let us say that
there ig a provision for hearing them.
Let ug say there is a textile industry
and you suddenly say that in Ahme-
dabad vou want a certain measure to
be introduced, Is there any provision
by which an industry can appear be-
fore the Board?

L L 2

DR. DEORAS: 1 think there iz a
provision. Invitees are there, they are
invited to the meeting.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
«CHARJEE; Now, under Section 11 a
committee may be formed.

DR, DEORAS: I think there i a
provision for invitees, who may not
be members of the bBoard.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are two
different matters. One is permanent
representation from the industry oa
the Board. Certainly that can be
done, You have 15 or P3-themberg on
the Board and you cap have one or
two persons representing the ndustry
on the Board permanently The
second point is that no particular
guideline is laid down for industry.
Surely there must be some opportu-
nity given to them because it is not
-only a question of industry wanting
to pollute the atmosphere, For exam-
ple in Ahmedabad the industries are
there for the last 150 years or so.
Tomorrow if you turn round and tell
them that they must get import licen-
ces for machinery, you will not be
solving the problem by that way.
There must be some forum where this
can be discussed and afterwards we
may say all right we would give you
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three years and within three years
you have got to shift over to thig type
of technology.”

MR. CHAIRMAN: On page 11 it is
stated that ‘“the State Board shall
after giving the person to whom con-
aent has been granted or is presumed
to have been graated an opportunity
of being heard, vary all or any of
such conditiong and thereupon such
person shall be bound to comply with
the conditions as so varied”, We must
do it in such a manner that the Bill
also becomeg operative and there is
no use of laying down standards by
a Committee of experts.

DR. DEORAS: The problem will
not be solved if the industrieg do not
keep their factories in order, 80 per
cent of them are not maiataining their
factoriey in a proper manner. I wil
give you an example. A gas company
in Bombay was requested to expand
its Retortg from horizontal to verti-
cal. We have been requesting them
for the last 10 years, but nothiag has
been done so far, even though this
will reduce air pollution,

MR, CHAIRMAN: Maintenance is
a national weakness. If you go and
see the tourists bungalows yoh will
filad the toilets are filthy and the car-
pet; are dirty, You know we are un-
able to maintain them properly. So
the concept of proper maintenance is
still foreign to our national conscience.

SHRIMATI PARVATHI KRISH-
NAN: It is a question of maintenance
that is involved and it isg not a ques-
tion of fresh investment for moder-
nising the building. For failure to
proper maintenance, there should be
stringeat penalty. ®

MR, CHAIRMAN: You have made
a very good point, Of course there is
a wear and tear and natural deterio-
ration in any equipment but the main-
tenance aspect must also be stressed.

DR, DEORAS: Varioug industries
involve so many departments proper



maintenance. Unfortunately, I do not
know whether there is even proper
coordination within them. We had a
very gad experience in our State
when two departments started ex-
panding without any proper coordi-
nation in even Government depart-
ments. Government spent six lakhs
to have a national park at “Totladoh”
at a distance of sixty miles from
Nagpur and it was also tourist attrac-
tion, Suddenly, the PWD put a dam
on the river and cut one third of the
entire forest, the whole thing lost its
charm. -

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Taj can
bring in hundreds of crores of rupees
worth foreign exchange, It cai pay for
Mathura refinery in five years, I am
sure. Tourism ig solid cash, I have
been incharge of the Tourism Ministry
for gix yearg and’ T knew that tourism
hag a tremendous income poténtial,
but the pollution has caused much
havoc. i

Anything else? Do you want a full
time person to be Vice-Chairman of
the Board?

DR. DEORAS: It would be desir-
able, Many a time, one of the Secre-
taries of the Department is appointed
as Chairman and hardly has any time.
One of them Chairman or the Vice-
Chairmain, should be full time job.

MR, CHAIRMAN: Anything else?

DR. DEORAS: The location of
heavy industries in various places
should be done on a rational basis, for
example you should have an industry
based on agriculture in an agricul
tural belt It would not be correct to
put up a refinery or 5 heavy steel in-
dustry in an area which is agricultu-
ral.

MR. CHAIRMAN: This is & very
sensitive matter, There ig a National
Committee on environmental Planning

nd Coordination This has got to be

uilt into the Planning Commission
that that becomes a filter. Any major
project whi¢th comeg to the Planning
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Commission should go through the
filter of such a body in the Planning
Commission so that at the earliest
stage some guggestions are made
otherwise it becomes a political issue
later on and the whole Government
somtimes collapseg on issues like es-
tablishment of a steel plant or gsome
other industry. We mugt prevent this
and thig can be done if we have such
a built-in mechanism.

Now, originally it wag provided
that the sample could be divideq into
two parts, but yesterday one witness
said that this wag not a practical pro-
position because the act of dividing it
into two partg would tamper with the
quality and, therefore, he suggested
that we ghould provide for two paral-
lel samples to be taken rather than
divide one into two.

DR. DEORAS:
tion. I agree,

MR, CHAIRMAN: And then the
manufacture _of anti-pollution instru-
mentation can itself be ; major indus-
try. Somebody will have to produce
thousands of these instruments. The
helmet industry has developed like
anything as wearing these crash hel-
mets was made compulsory.

DR. DEORAS: Much of the pollu-
tants, if utilised properly, will also
give money. Sulphur dioxide, for
example can be used for killing rates,
it it could be liquified. D.D.T. was a
product developed from the solid
wastes thrown by a dye stuff Industry
in Basle,

MR. CHAIRMAN: Have you done
some work on snakes?

DR. DEORAS: I have been work-
ing for the last 20 years on snakes
and their venoms for therapeutical
purpoces, and for anti-vein. I am
aware of the Whitaker Farm at
Madras. We have a snake farm, uf
Haffkine Institute established in 1850.
But gnakes in captivity do not breed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 1 helieve that
in the Madras farm, they do breed.

It is a good sugges-



DR. DEORAS: In one generation
they may breed. Snakes require
some mollusces and other feed in

younger stages. They are not avail-
able in the farm. Our snake farm in
Bombay ig at the Haffkine Istitute.
You can breed snakes, and put them
in Nature. We have provided for
this in a Scheme. The Tourist De-
partment of MaRarashtra is thinking
in terms of having a snake exhibition
near the fllm city.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Thank you very
much, I¥r. Deoras. Your evidence
has been valuable. The next witness
will be Mr, Vohra, Secretary, Minis-
try of Petroleum.

(The witness then withdrew)

Shri B. B. Vohra, Secretary, Ministry
of Petroleum Chemicaly and Ferti-
ligers, Government of India, New
Delht.

Agssisted by:

(i) Shri T. S. Nayar Adviser
(Refineries)

(ii) Shri K. Chandrachoodan
Director (Refineries).

(The Witness were
they took their seats).

MR. CHAIRMAN: Before we pro-
ceed, I may draw your attention to
Direction 58 of the Directions of the
Speaker which reads as follows:

“58. Where witnesses appear be-
fore a Committee to give evidence,
the Chairman shall make it clear to
the witnesses that their evidence
shall be treated as public and is
liable to be published unless they
specifically desire that all or any
part of the evidence given by them
is to be treated ag confidential. It
shall however, be explained to the
witnesses that even though they
méght desire their evidence to be
treated as confidential such evi-
dence is liable to be made available
to the Members of Parliament.”

Shri Vohra, the Committee is
grateful to ~you for coming over
here at a short notice to appear

called in and
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before us, As you know, we are
dealing with air Pollution Bill and a
number of important matters have
come before us. But one of the most
important things is, shall we say,
that the matter has become symbolic
of the entire environmental move-
ment not only in India but abroad

also. I had been associated, as
you know, for many years with
environment programme. A great

deal of concern is being expressed in
India and abroad with regard to the
location of the Mathura Refinery.
We are aware that a ggood deal ot
money has been spent in Mathura and
certain commitments have been made.
But none-the-less two or three things
are weighing very heavily on our
mind. The first is the Taj which is
the single most famous monument in
the world. I cannot think of any
other monument of the same impor-
tance.

Exiperts have appeared bhefore us
including Shri Shivaji Rao Shri Dave.
They have said that the present loca-
ton is highly unsatisfactory. One ot
the witnesses went to the extent of
saying that this is the worst possible
site because all the affluence will go
into Jamuna and thereby poison the
drinking water. It has been suggest-
ed to us that a comparatively minot
shift of the site—even forty to fifty
miles of the present site-will be bet-
ter. Some people ‘have suggested
Etawah—south east of the Taj They
say shifting of the site even at this
stage greatly minimise the pollutant
effect of the refinery. A point has
also been made that the existing
structures in Mathura, although there
will be certain amount of loss, may
be used if the factory is not too far,
for storage, marKetTng, residential
complex. Thig point of view has been
stressed. The Manager of the Mathura
Refinery—Shri Nayak—put up a very
dignified and effective case, but I
think T am reflecting the views of the
the Members of this Committee when
T say that the pollution threat to the



" Taj may or may not be as much be-

cause there are a lot of imponder-
ables, but the possibilty of grave pol-
lution threat to the Taj from the
Mathura Refinery is certainly a very
real one and even if the situation is
not as bad as some of the experts
feel even there as a measure_of abun-
dant caution there is a view grow-
ing in this Committee that the site
would not be desirable.

I realise, having been in Govern-
ment for ten years, when the founda-
tion stone wag laid, I am not trying
to dissociate myself personally, 1
am aware of the dfficulties I am also
aware of the fact that if the Com-
mittee like ours would make a major
recommendation, it would give the
necessary moral support, shall we say,
to the Government to take a decision
on thig matter.

We thought that this matter is so
important that we should hear direct-
ly from the administrative head. The
Minister we can meet informally later.
The Minister himself is reported to
have made a Statement that the Taj
will not be allowed to be polluted.
He said this on the floor of the House
and glso in the various meetings.

Would you like to say something
about this and then the Members

could ask further questions.

SHRI VOHRA: At the outset may
I suggest—after you have heard me
and my colleagues, the Committee
may also like to hear the Members
of the Expert Committee, particular-
ly its Chairman—Shri Verdharajan
because this is one of those cases
where the experts do not quite agree
with each other. We have beep guid-
ed by expert opinion in a matter like
this. In fact our records show ' that
before the location of the reflnery
wan finalised in 1973, the matter was
‘p‘eferred to the National] Committee on
Environment, (Planning and Co-
ordination). They cleared this site
after considerng various environmen-
tal factors involved,
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You are aware that two factors are
—liquid efluents and pollution from
the gases. As far as liquid effluenta
are concerned there is no difference
of opinion that this can be handled
quite easily. We have water treat-
ment methods. They are being em-
ployed. In fact of another refinery
at Koyali near Baroda, the waste
water is now being used for irriga-
ton. The quality of the water can be
monitored and we have also taken
abundant precaution that the treat-
ment is upto the standards expected.
In fact our Minister has even gone
beyond that—he has directed that we
may create a small artificial lake be-
fore we let out the water in Jamuna
and in this lake we should breed fish.

MR. CHAIRMAN: That is for the
Mathura Refinery.

SHRI VOHRA: The health of the
fish can show whether there is any-
thing obnoxious.

As far as gaseous effluenty are’ con-
cerned, we have gone very largely
by the findings of the Expart Commit-
tee that for all practical purposes
there is no reason to fear that there
will be any damage done. In fact
one of the spin offs from this
entire exercise has been this—that the
observationg made by the Committee
or order to be made by the Commit-
tee in connection with its own work
show that the present level of pollu-
tion by SO2 in Agra is quite high.
According to them the annual aver-
age pollution at present before the re-
finery has been able to go on opera-
tion is of the leve] of 15 to 20 micro-
gram per cubic metre of Sulphur—
Dioxide in area around the Taj and
their computation, as you will right-
ly observe has been based on various
mathematical approaches. There will
not be any appreciable addition to thig
potition by the refinery—may be one
to two microgram per cubic meter
taken as a whole. The expert com-
mittee therefore recommended a num-
ber of measures which would improve
the  situation by reducing the pollu-
tion from sources other than the re-



finery. If we are able to take those
steps, that in itself will be a great
service to this historic monament.
They have identified sources of such
pollution like foundries within the
city of Agra itself, smoke coming out
of coal-powered locos in the shunting
yards, power houses, etc., in addition
to countless domestic stoves burning
soft coke. So, the problem has to be
viewed as a whole. If we accept the
committee’s finding that the addition
to the pollution will be of the order
of 7 to 10 per cent of the existing
level of pollution, the thing falls into
another kind of perspective altoge-
ther. I have not met those experts,
but from what I read in the news-
papers, certain experts are rightly
concerned about it, but I think they
have overdrawn the picture, saying
that Yamuna waters will be poisoned,
people will die, ete., just creating a
scare without any reason to do so.
The committee has also recommended
what measures should be taken to
improve the pollution situation not
only the existing pollution but as far
as the refinery is concerned, they
have recommended that we should cut
down pollution to the maximum ex-
tent by using low sulphur fuel oil
and by not using coal in the power
houses although it is a cheaper fuel.
Treatment of the gases has also been
recommended. They have also re-
commended that a constant watch
should be kept on the situation. In
view of the totality of the recom-
mendations, it is very difficult to con-
clude that Taj will be endangered by
this new refinery. The distance is 42
KM. The level of pollution in cer-
tain other towns of the world where
there are historic buildings is unbe-
lievably high. In London city it is
250, in Milan 600 and in Toronto 170.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But they are
taking measures now to decrease the
pollution. London has become dis-
tinctly cleaner over the last 20 years.
In Thames which was a dead river,
fish are coming alive again. So far
as Agra is concerned, I agree there
are other sources of pollution but we
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are introducing a new element in a
very sensitive area. If the thing had
been there originally it would be a
different point, but the objection is,
you are de novo introducing some-
thing. Why do it even if there is the
slightest fear that it may have an
adverse effect? Taj is made of whit-
marble which is peculiarly suscepti-
ble to sulphur dioxide. Yesterday the
Director-General of the Archaeologi-
cal Survey of India told us that it
would be bad from the archaeological
point of view also. You rightly said
that expert would not agree, but if
the pessimistic experts turn out to be
right, we have a very heavy debt of
guilt to the future generations. This
refinery is a permanent thing which
will go on for 150 or 200 years. We
may be able to do something about
the existing levels of pollution but
should we bring in a new source of
pollution when an alternative site
could cut down the danger by 90 to
95 per cent? This is the figure given
to us. We are not experts. Apart
from the cost factor, what would be
the major objection of the Ministry
if the Government of India could be
persuaded to take a fresh look at this
and look for an alternative site? Is
it the time lead with regard to pro-
duction of petroleum products? What
exactly is the objection apart from
cost?

SHRI VOHRA: When you ask
what objection; Government would
have to the shifting of the site, no
serious thought has been given to this
because we are still of the view that
it is not such a serious threat as is
being made out. I shall give my per-
sonal views. These are not the views
of my ministry. Apart from the
question of having cost involved,
there is the question of delay in the
construction of refinery on which our
plans are built and on which crude
from other countries iz tied. If we
delay the refinery by another four
vears, whether we will get the petro-
leum products that is another pro-
blem. Finally, technologically, there



seems to be no reason why we should
not be able to control the pollution.
If the political will is not there, to
control even the existing levels of
pollution in itself is going to be a dif-
fieult job. Supposing, even Mathura
refinery was not there, then also we
have to do something. All our efforts
to the UP Government to close down
the power houses there, failed. So,
it is not go easy a matter to be tack-
led. Even if it is taken that the
refinery is not being built there, even
then Taj would not be safe.

Coming to this particular threat
which, according to the findings ot
the Expert Committee to which Arc-

heological Department is also a
party,....
MR. CHAIRMAN: Experts are

changing their views. Some remarks
were made about this Expert Com-
mittee but that is a different matter.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: What he has said is that
even the existing level of pollution
needs to be tackled very effectively
and that if the political will is there,
that in itself is not an easy task. Then
how does he feel justified in doubling
the amount of pollution by having this
refinery there?

SHRI VOHRA: This wil] add upto
10 per cent.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The General
Manager of Mathura Refinery stated
that it would be 63. According to
you, the existing level has to be tack-
led and that tackling i3 not being
done. I this thing comes up, what is
the ground of optimism that it can be
tackled? Your own argument seems
to be that the refinery should not come
up there.

SHRI VOHRA: The damage to the
Taj from the refinery will not take
place overnight. It will take some
timo to have its effect felt on it. The
way the science is advancing, it will
nbt be beyond our capacity to scrub
the gases which escape from the
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stacks. Certain work is already go-
ing on elsewhere in the world. I
would not rule out the possibility ot
technological breakthrough on this
point.

The other thing I would mention is
that there is a possibility of giving a
transparent coat to the Taj as a pro-
tective polish.

MR. CHAIRMAN: There are two
question involved. One is the ques-
tion of cost. And the other question
is that of timelag of four yeass if the
refinery is shifted from that place. Is
there any refinery capacity elsewhere
in India coming up which could deal
with that gap? We were told the
pipeline is not yet complete. It has

" rather just started. If this' is put off

for four years, do you envisage any
major set back to the availability
situation in India? We were told by
Prof. Shivaji Rao that if a sum of
Rs. 20 or 25 croreg extra is spent on
the Mathura reflnery, this pollution
could be reduced by 90 per cent, Can
you throw some light on these two
points?

SHRI VOHRA: The effects of

building the refinery at any other
place would be very serious. I would
requesy Mr. Nayar to throw some

more light on that, But s Tar as the
second point ig concerned. I do not
know which kind of amendment
Prof. ghivaji Rao had in mind.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It is some exist-

ing technology.

SHRI NAYAR: Regarding de-
sulphudization of gases, there are two
known cases existing at present. One
is a commercial unit operating in
Japan. This has been commissioned
about 4} year back in Japan is one
of the refineries. The second is a
French process developed by their Ins-
titute of Petroleum. They have some
commercial plant working in Europe.
Since the matter is important to us,
we had a contact with them and 1
had an ooportunity to see the com-



mercial plant in Japan during one ot
my visits there. I happened to be
there and I remember this unit. 1
requested them to show me this unit.
1 saw the unit when it was three years
old. It was in a knockell down con-
dition at that time. At the end of
three years, the licensees were not in
a position to say what is the next
step, because it was a failure. They
could not run this unit at a time for
more than 45 days to period of 80
days continuously. So, if you go in
for a technology of that type, theore-
tically it is a successful technology,
but it is not proved. This was_the
position in January 1977. Afterwards,
to our knowledge, they have not pro-
gressed further.

Regarding the second process. I
had a discussion two months back also

when their chief of technology was in
India. I asked them for the progress
of the unit. We will be burning fur-
nace oil in the Mathura refinery,
which contains less than 1.0 per cent
sulphur; this process will not work
for emission from furnace oil contain-
ing less than 2.5 per cent because the
sulphur di-oxide content in’ the off
gases ig so small that jt cannot pick
up that low concentration.

MR. CHAIRMAN: In other words,
what you are saying is that even
with an additional expenditure of Rs.
25 crores, there is no assurance that
it would make any substantial impact.

SHRI NAYAR: At the moment it
is so. But, as the Secretary mention-
ed, all are working hard on it, be-
cause it is a problem all over the
world.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I would read one
paragraph:

“If it is not possible to shift the
refinery itself, at least the most
polluting units could be shifted to
Etawah. .. .the effluents should not
be discharged in the Jamuna but
must be conveyed through a pipe-
line and discharged into the river
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at a suitable place downstream to
protect the drinking water supply.”

Perhaps, after the project started, you
have not considered seriously this as-
pect. ’

SHRI VOHRA: Particularly in
view of the report of the expert com-
mittee,

MR. CHAIRMAN: But, after all,
experts in this fleld are not very
many. But air pollution is a deve-
loping area and a lot of new data is
flowing into the computer as it werec.
If it can be proved that there is at
least a fair chance that the expert
commitee may have under-estimated
the pollution threat, and if there is
in fact a likelihood of serious pollu-
tion threat, then the problem of shift-
ing and the time lead are the things
that are bothcring me. Because, after
all, you cannot quantify the Taj: you
cannot price it. If after 50 years or
100 years, when everybody sitting
round the tab'e are dead and gone, if
Taj starts co’lapsing then we cannot
do anything about it at that stage.
So, the time 1:ad business ¥s the only
matter that is worrying me. It may
be possible to think of some alterna-
tive methodology, either by import-
ing finished products to make up the
gap, or increasing the refinery capa-
city; what would be your advice?
We will give a report in three or four
months. Do you think that we should
talk to the Minister, or the Prime
Minister, or do something about it?
After all, this is going to be a national
problem. If we have to think of an
alternative site, why lose another six
months? And by the the time the
Parliament also debates it, more time
will be lost and the cost will also go
up.

PROF. SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: Then what is the record
so far as adhering to the time sche-
dule is concerned in the case of re-



fineries? When it has to be complet-
ed in two years, it generally takes
four to five years. So, this would not
really be a big time lag.

MR. CHAIRMAN: It seems to me
that the stakes are so high that.even
at the risk of some infructuous ex-
penditure and time lag, may be the
Government will have to reconsider
it, because it is going to be a big issue.
I think there is no time to be lost on
the part of the Government. Govern-
ment have spent public anoney, not
private money. We are not doing this
in any way to embarrass the Gov-
ernment. Luckily for them, they can
always say that it was the previous
Government which did it. So, the
political disadvantage will come only
to our shoulders. We have to look at
it from the point of view of our
children and grandchildren who are
going to live in India in the 21st cen-
tury. No one will argue that the
putting up of a refinery will in any
way improve the environment. It is
such an intangible thing that it be-
comes really very difficult for any-
body to take the responsibility and ex-
press an opinion either way. This is
the broad thinking of the Committee
so far. I want to keep you informed
so that you can inform your Minister,
because we are not simply talking of
the technicalities, If the Minister
wants to meet us, we would be very
happy to meet him. Ultimately, the
decision has to be taken at the politi-
cal level, and not at the administrative
level.

SHRI VOHRA: The first question
which was asked was about the effect
of the set back or delay in having an
alternative site. The money spent on
this project, including the equipments,
comes to Rs. 140 crores.

MR. CHAIRMAN: But that in-
cludes equipment, which can be uti-
lized in the alternative site also.

SHRI VOHRA: The second ques-
tion was about the cost which the
country hag to bear. The amount of

crude which will be processed by this
refinery is about 6 million tonnes a
year. The differential between the
cost of imported crude and the cost
of the product here is about 70 dollars
a tonne. Computed at the level of
5.4 million tonnes a year, it works
out in terms of crores of rupees about
Rs. 300 crores a year, which means
at the present day prices in four
years it will come to about Rs. 1,200
crores. But whether we will be able
to get these products from any other
source is a very big question now.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Is there not any
expansion of reflnery facilities in
Bombay or anywhere else? Is any
other refinery being built anywhere
in India?

SHRI VOHRA: No. This i3 the only
refinery and whatever small expan-
sion projects we have, that is taken
care of in our computationg of our
expanded demand for projects, So
this lag which will be created by the
delay in the setting up of new refl-
neries wherever it is, cannot be taken
up by any of the existing refineries.
In fact, only yesterday we had &
meeting with the Planning Commis-
sion to discuss what further additions
to reflnery capacity need be.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Because the exis-
ting refineries could perhaps expand
quicker?

SHRI VOHRA: We can expand.
We have taken all that into consi- ,
deration, We are going to allow
those expansions to take place in
order to cope up with the additional
demand. And in addition to all that,
we are thinking of new grass-root
refineries which ghould be taken up
within a year from now. That means,
if it is taken up in 1980, it should
start production in 1984.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Where would
that be?

SHRI VOHRA: The location of
that will be considered by an expert
committee on the basis of demand and
supply projections,



MR, CHAIRMAN: 3 this guing to
be a new expert Commitiee?

SHRI VOHRA: Thig is not going w
be an expert commitwce on poliauun.

M. CHAIRMAN: knvironment
values are involved in tnat.

SHRI VOHRA: We will involve, of
coulrde, tue uLeparnument oL  deieuce
and lecunology rully wilh regard 1o
"the location or that new one. I
means, purely in money termg it is
going to be & heavy cnarge pius inls
unknown factor of whether we are
able to get these products trom any-
where else at all, We are toaay im-
porung some producls from Kussia.
We 1ind 1t difncult even to get 2 iakn
tonne3s extra. It 1s a very authicuit
probiem. Apart trom this, you have
very rightly said that taking a long
historical view 50 yearg trom now,
whenever a decision is taken on this
complicated matter, I think either
way there will have to be some act
of taith. But if we stick to this loca-
tion, it is almost near certainty that
it is not beyond the possibilities of
science, If we can land a man on
the moon and bring him back, 1
think we have not explored all the
possibilities so far of saving the
Taj not only from the refineries, but
even from the existing poliution. As
a layman I am almost sure that if we
concentrate on this, if we seek the
latest opinion from whatever sources
*it may be available and if we com-
mission somebody to carry out re-
search, if necessary,—a lot of research
is taking place in countries which are
highly polluted like Japan and Ame-
rica where the degree of conscious-
ness is much higher.—I am sure that
some technological solution is bound
to be found for this problem. It is not
a3 if it will be beyond the scope of
science. We do some kind of spray-
ing on our cars. We have our cars
painted and we use vax and all that.
On thig point of pollution, as you
observe, consciousness has come only

during the last 10 years. In fact

in the 1972 Stockholm Conference

there has been concentrated atten-
tion paid to these problems. Other-
wiie nobody botnered about them.
Even in Delhi, 1 would very
much iike to ask the Archaeo-
logical Depariment whether they have
paud any attention at ail to the dam-
age that 1s going to take piace 10
monuments lilke Red Fort or the
Juma Masjid or the Humayun Lomb.
Is anybody worried about 'faj actual-
ly or is it like a catch word *Save
tne Taj”? 1 am talking of the De-
partment of Archaeology which
should be concerned about it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Department
of Archaeology has been rather slow
on this. We jpointed it out yesterday.
The Archaeological Department
should really be the department to
raise thiz hue and cry. Even to be
fair to the GSI, the degeneration and
deterioration of marble and stone we
were aware of. But this problem ot
air pollution etc. iz very new. Even
in the West the chernical pollution by
these gases, as you say, has been
there for the last 10 years and so it
is new. All the more it becomes in-
cumbent upon us to take the longer
view. The Refinery has not yet been
commissioned. Now the knowledge
is beginning to come in. Now we are
caught in thigs excruciating double
mind. If we do not take the cogni-
zance of the knowledge, we are going
to be condemned before the bar of
public opinion.

SHRI VOHRA: It ig the same thing
with the Taj itself. It is not a ques-
tion of moncy. You cannot build
Taj again. Even if you have the
money, you cannot get the products.
It is at the moment planned to go
into operation in the second half of
1980.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Within a year
and a half?

SHRI VOHRA: Yes.

SHRI SOURENDRA BHATTA-
CHARJEE: For how long the gap
hag been existing?

SHRI VOHRA: When you say Rs.
800 corores in absolute terms, this



factor has to be taken into account—
tne existing gap, We import products
to thHe extent of about 401 million ton-
nes.tnese days. But with the opera-
tion of this' Refinery this has to come
downl )

MR. CHAIRMAN: And you must
have worked out consumption pat-
terns over a certain period?

SHRI T. S. NAYAR: We have about
27.5 million tonnes capacity refineries
as existing today. That is the nor-
mal capacity. But we can achieve
about 26 million tonnes only. ‘l'he
realistic capacity which we get in &
twelve month period is about 46 mil-
bon tonnes. With the addition of 6
mulions at Mathura, one million at
Bongaigaon and the expaniion of
Koyali we expect it to be 36 million
by 1980-81.

Only this year we did not have a
big gap between demand and refin-
ing capacity as such, but Burmah-
Shell and Caltex and ESSO refineries
are 23 years old, The refineries built
in 1962 are also getting old, and we
are not getting more than 10 to 11
months operation in any year. There-
fore, we imported 4 million tonnes
last year, and this year it is going to
be really alarming. We are short of
refining capacity from 1978-79 and
we thought that with the commis-
sioning of the Mathura rafinery we
would have a little cushion in 1980-81,
but with the present growth rate,
there will be no cushion from now
onwards, and we are going to live
with a deficit in all the years to come
unless we put up 6 million refining
capacity every alternate year.

SHRI VOHRA: The expert body
which I mentioned is going into the
question where it is to be located.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Perhaps the same
expert body could go into the ques-
tion of the Mathura refinery also. An
integrated approach to the problem
would evidently be of advantage.
The time lag would conceivably be

reduced if some advantage could be
taken of the existing structures in
Mathura and only the more polluting
elements are shitted.

SHRI VOHRA: The point really
will be whether we completely rule
it out, because the stakes are so high
either way. It will be a very difficult
decision for anybody to take. This
will be comparatively easy, but the
question iz whether we will be able
to contain the pollution created by

Agra.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Even if Mathura
was not there, that would be one of
the major recommendations of our
Committee, With the already existing
heavy pollution in Agra, this addi-
tion would be the last straw. Had
there been no pollution in Agra, this
might be an acceptable level, but this
will be the blowing pollutants 40 km,
according to the direction of the wind.

SHRI VOHRA: Apart from Dr.
Varadarajan, you might like to dis-
cuss it with the Minister and perhaps
on a crash basis we can agk the
UNESCO to help us

MR. CHAIRMAN: If you delay
changing the site, it will delay the
project further. We do not want Agra
to get into a situation like Venice.
The monuments there have become
unrecognizable, totally defaced and
destroyed. They are passing a special
Act to save Venice. Would it not be
possible to shift Mathura refinery 30
or 40 miles?

SHRI NAYAR: Ninety per cent of
the pollution from a refinery comes
from two main sources: the chimney
of the power plant, and the chimney
of the crude distillation unit. With-
out these two, there is no reflnery
If you want to remove them, there
is no refinery left.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Out of Ra. 100
crores, how much is on the power

plant?



SHRI NAYAR: Rs. 33 crores. This
has already been constructed. The
boiler turbine set: and other in puts
have been put up.

MR CHAIRMAN: Can you not shift
them to Etawah?

SHRi VOHRA: Technically you can
dismantle it. but it would mean some
wastage.
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MR. CHAIRMAN: We were told
that out of Rs, 100 crores already
spent, about Rs. 15 crores on acqui-
gition of land, civil works etc., and
about Rs. 85 crores on items of equip-
ment, which will not be a total waste,
which can be removed.

Thank you.
The Committee then adjourned.
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